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Vision 
A leading accountancy body that embodies 
the Singapore brand promise of Trust, 
Responsiveness and Innovation.

Mission
To lead, develop and support accountancy 
professionals so that they will excel in their 
role and contribute to building Singapore as  
a strategic business hub and a key player in 
the global economy.

To uphold the public interest.

Goal 
To be the “go to” body and reference point 
for accountancy and related professionals, 
working in or who have dealings in Singapore.

Contents



Develop CPA Singapore to 
be the most sought-after 
designation in the region

Provide thought and  
practice leadership

Accountancy Excellence



Develop the accountancy 
sector in partnership with 
the government

Lead in engaging relevant 
regulatory agencies in 
setting standards

Industry Growth



Industry Growth Member & Human Capital
Development

Provide effective, 
accessible and affordable 
CPe  training

Deliver customised, 
value-added services  
to grow membership

harness the potential of 
ICPAS’ training arm
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We began the year with great uncertainty. The near 
collapse of the US and European financial systems 
affected economies worldwide. In the first quarter 
of 2009, our economy was facing a significant plunge 
in GDP growth. The Institute deemed it necessary  
to ensure our members continue to update their  
skills by introducing the CPE Training Assistance 
Package to provide our members with funding  
support. I am heartened that 2009 turned out better 
than was feared. 

2009 was a year of reckoning for the Institute and 
indeed myself. Former President Mr Tan Boen Eng 
passed the baton to me, with the full endorsement 
of the Council, in April. It is an honour for me to 
assume the responsibility, but I am also acutely 
aware of the significance of being in office and the 
work that we have to do to make this Institute a 
globally recognised professional accountancy body.  

To drive the Institute’s growth, an execution task force, 
chaired by myself, was formed. The task force met 
during the year to spearhead projects and execute 
initiatives contributing to the Institute’s development 
under the strategic pillars of Accountancy 
Excellence, Industry Growth, and Member & human 
Capital Development (AIM).

We also strengthened our leadership team with 
the addition of Mr Teo Ser Luck, Senior Parliamentary 
Secretary for Ministry of Community Development, 
Youth and Sports and Ministry of Transport as our 
Advisor, and Chairman of the National Kidney 
Foundation Mr Gerard Ee as Vice-President. I am 
thankful for Advisor Teo’s guidance in charting 
the development of the Institute. he has so kindly  
availed himself despite his many other commitments. 
During the year, he has taken the time to meet with 
myself and the senior management team to give 
his invaluable advice on key decisions. he has also 
provided input on the Institute’s strategic direction at 
ICPAS Council meetings. Along with my leadership 
team, and leveraging on their extensive experience 
in accounting and business, I aim to position ICPAS 
as a leading accountancy body that embodies the 
Singapore brand promise of Trust, Responsiveness 
and Innovation.

Aim for CPA Singapore to be Globally Recognised

It is heartening to see our membership grow from 
20,258 members in 2008 to 21,299 members by end 
2009. This represents a 5.1% growth for the year 
compared to 4.2% growth in 2008. Our members have 
been predominantly graduates from the respective 
accountancy schools in local universities. We see 
the need to draw talent for the profession from a 
bigger pool. I also see the need for the Institute to 
spread its wings and expand our presence beyond 
local shores. 

In line with the thrust to promote the CPA Singapore 
designation abroad, we have renewed the Mutual 
Recognition Agreement with CPA Australia. We have 
made significant headway internationally as ICPAS 

joined the ranks of 17 other accounting institutes 
from around the world as a member of the prestigious 
International Innovation Network (IIN). This is a major 
milestone in the Institute’s history. Not only does it 
give us a global footprint from which we can expand 
our network, it signals international recognition 
of our stature. Including ICPAS, IIN’s membership 
comprises 18 chartered and national accountancy 
bodies from Europe, Asia Pacific and the Americas. 
Members of the Global Accounting Alliance (GAA) 
are also the founding members of IIN.

From this collaboration platform, we are working 
towards greater recognition and portability of the 
CPA Singapore designation. This is a key strategic 
direction to enable the CPA Singapore designation to 
be recognised in major capital markets.

One of our key goals is to develop an accountancy 
qualification that will be recognised and portable 
globally. It will have a post-graduate curriculum 
and will be aligned with internationally reputable 
accountancy qualifications in terms of robustness, 
quality and reputation.

We continued to break new ground locally. We 
launched a new platform in collaboration with The 
Straits Times called the CPA Clinic. The eight-part 
series, which began on 2 September 2009, continued 
till 7 April 2010. The monthly column in the SME 
page of The Straits Times Money section gave the 
Institute an opportunity to showcase and promote its 
capabilities and services, as well as the value that 
CPAs Singapore bring to organisations as finance 
and business leaders.

A record number of media hits was achieved for 
the year, with ICPAS being mentioned in 110 media 
stories, which works out to be 2 media mentions per 
week on average. This represented an increase of 
more than 100 percent in media coverage, compared 
to the previous year. This has really raised the 
Institute’s visibility as well as awareness of the CPA 
Singapore brand.

Voice of the Profession

Changes are underway at the international level that 
will impact the accountancy sector in Singapore. 
As the national accountancy body, we need to, and 
will, assume a leadership role in helping to bring 
Singapore to the next level: through high-quality 
accounting, auditing and ethical standards; an 
understanding and support of the  growth of SMEs; 
cooperation among organisations, and always, with 
the public interest as our guiding principle.

We sought to provide our members with the resources 
to stay on top of developments and provide thought 
leadership on salient issues. To help our members 
stay updated, we organised seminars and roundtables 
on topical accountancy and business issues. We also 
continued to equip members with relevant skills 
and updated them on latest developments in the 
accountancy sector via our Continuing Professional 
Education programmes. During the year in review, 
we reached out to more than 12,000 participants, 
comprising not just members but also business 
leaders, government agency representatives and 
members of the public.  

The Institute set up a new unit, ICPAS Research, in 
June, focused on producing quality research that 
is relevant to the profession. Besides studying 
accountancy trends, the Unit provides insights  
on changes in the macroeconomic environment. 
Through i ts  thought leadership roundtables, 

President’s  
Message
My fellow professionals and CPAs Singapore,

teo Ser Luck
ICPAS Advisor
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the Unit also serves as a conduit for feedback 
on topical issues from leaders in business and 
government. 

The Ministry of Finance in October 2007 appointed  
a high level steering committee, chaired by the 
Attorney-General, to conduct a comprehensive 
review of the Companies Act. The present 
Companies Act was enacted in 1967 and was 
premised on the business environment then. The 
way businesses are structured and conducted has 
changed and globalisation has made business more  
cross-border than ever. At the invitation of the 
Attorney-General, the Institute actively participated 
in providing feedback in all key areas during 2009.

The Code of Ethics is one of the most important 
institutions of the accountancy profession and 
has long been a foundation for public trust in the 
profession. Together with ACRA, the Institute 
launched the enhanced Code of Ethics, which is based 
on the Code of Ethics of the International Federation 
of Accountants (IFAC), a global benchmark for the 
accounting profession.

In July 2009, the Institute announced a new 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee 
(AASC) appointed under an enhanced nominations 
process that is administered jointly with the Public 
Accountants Oversight Committee of ACRA. This 
is a significant milestone for the Institute. The 
enhancements seek to strengthen the rigour, 
transparency and stakeholders’ engagement in the 
auditing and assurance standard-setting process 
in Singapore. This will help instil greater public 
confidence in the standard-setting process here, and 
hence, Singapore’s business environment.

A Changing Landscape

As part of its strategy to position Singapore as  
the business and financial hub in Asia, the  
Ministry of Finance set up the Committee to  
Develop the Accountancy Sector (CDAS) in late 
2008. The 14-member committee, in which I am 
honoured to participate as ICPAS representative, 
was tasked to develop a roadmap to transform 
Singapore into a regional accountancy hub for talent, 
services and education. For its part, the Institute 
worked hard to propose resolute, workable and bold 
recommendations, crafted on the premise of the 
Institute’s mission of developing the accountancy 
sector to play a major role in the building of  
Singapore as a strategic business hub and key player 
in the global economy. In November 2009, CDAS 
published its report with 10 key recommendations 
for public consultation.

One of CDAS’ recommendations is for ICPAS to 
transform into a global professional accountancy 
body. Intended outcomes for ICPAS resulting from 
taking on a stronger role would be to elevate the 
standing of the accountancy profession, deepen the 
expertise and widen the skill sets of accountants and 
support the development of Singapore as a global 
accountancy hub.

The recommendations by CDAS reaffirms the key 
role ICPAS, as the national accountancy body, plays 
in the development of the accountancy sector. As 
ICPAS prepares to take on a bigger role, we are 
developing the appropriate infrastructure to support 
this vision. Over the course of the year, the Institute 
continued to prepare itself to take on a broader role, 
undertaking research and development projects as 
well as working closely with the government and the 
industry to develop the accountancy sector.

Similarly, the Institute will not only need to transform 
itself into a global professional accountancy body as 
articulated  in one of the CDAS recommendations 
but also spread its wings in key emerging markets. 
I believe we all share this ambition and we will need 
to ensure that we can achieve a strategic balance of 
infrastructural development, leadership continuity 
and renewal as well as key stakeholders’ support.

Investing for the Future

The Institute’s financial performance continues 
to benefit from the strong contribution from 
our training arm, the Singapore Accountancy 
Academy. It currently administers the Continuing 
Professional Education (CPE) needs of our more than 
21,000 members. In addition, we have close to 6,000 
students being trained in various professional and 
undergraduate programmes within our campuses. 
We are experiencing strong growth, especially from  
international students. To cater to our increasing 
needs, the Institute has made a strategic investment 
in developing its own school management system. 
Work has  begun and we are targeting to complete 
this undertaking by the second half of 2010.  
Another initiative implemented was the consolidation 
of the membership administration and members 
marketing divisions into members’ services division. 
This allowed us to improve our service to members.

The development of a new membership service 
system has started and will be completed  
in 2010. This will provide a platform to better 
serve members’ needs and also facilitate future  
membership growth. In tandem with this, we are 
setting up a membership service centre at our City 
Campus at 6 Raffles Quay.

We will be increasing our investment in knowledge 
networks and programmes to heighten the 
professional capability of our members, especially 
in  specialised  professional expertise. My goal is 
to ensure that we develop a sustainable platform 
for continuous updating of programmes to build  
expertise in  growth areas.

At a Turning Point 

The Institute is now at a turning point. We are poised 
to take a leadership role and provide the support 
that will propel Singapore’s growth as a global 
accountancy hub. At this decisive moment, you 
can expect that plans are underway that will have 
historic significance on the business and economic 
landscape. At the Institute, we are driven by a sense  
of mission to develop the accountancy profession 
and contribute to the nation’s growth. 

We would not have been able to come this far and  
achieved this much without the hard work and 
commitment of our Advisor Mr Teo Ser Luck, 
the Executive Committee and Council Members, 
committee members, the management team and 
staff. I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude  
to each of them for their contributions. Last but not 
least, I would like to thank all our members for your 
continued support. I am confident that, together, we 
can make a Dynamic Institute, Vibrant Profession and 
Resolute ICPAS come to life.

ernest Kan
President
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Report of the Council

the COUNCIL

At the first Council meeting in April 2009, the following Council members were elected as office bearers:

President - Ernest Kan
Vice President - Gerard Ee
Treasurer - Khoo ho Tong

The 2009/2010 Council held seven ordinary meetings from April 2009 to March 2010. The number of Council 
meetings attended (A) and the number of committees on which each Council member served (B) are  
given below:

 A B  A B

Gerard Ee 4 5 Quek Shi Kui 5 2
Don ho 7 2 Sitoh Yih Pin 4 3
Ernest Kan 7 8 Tan Boen Eng 5 7
Khoo ho Tong 6 7 Danny Teoh 2 2
Kon Yin Tong  2 3 Wong Lai Yong 7 3
Lee Chee Wung (Till 31.12.09) 4 4 Tom Yee 6 5
Lim Boon Cheng 4 5 Gillian Yeo 4 3
Loh hoon Sun 4 2 Yeoh Oon Jin 5 3
Pang Yang hoong 5 2 Yim Kam May 6 1
Steven Phan 4 3   

TakingAIM
The phrase evokes associations with aspiration, focus 

and intense resolve. It is the key moment, when all attention is 
centred on the goal, the spotlight moment in the Institute’s history. 

This is an apt metaphor for the 2009/2010 Report of the 
Council. For the year in review, the Council continued to set 

strategic goals that steered the Institute in line with its vision to be 
a leading accountancy body embodying the Singapore brand promise of 

Trust, Responsiveness and Innovation. Under the direction of the Council, the 
Institute spearheaded initiatives in line with the key thrusts of Accountancy Excellence, 

Industry Growth and Member & human Capital Development, or AIM.  

With a clear AIM in place, ICPAS is well-positioned for targeted and 
intentional development.

The following pages tell the story of how the Council brought the Institute to greater 
heights during the year in review.
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ACtIVItIeS  2007  2008  2009
 
No. of Committees  35  33  30
No. of Meetings  53  57  68
Publications of the Institute  22  27  23
Courses and Talks  335  335  250
Conferences  1  1  -
 
MeMBeRShIP

No. of Members  19,168  20,258  21,299
Total Subscriptions $ 2,645,770 $ 2,772,763 $ 2,901,900
Total Secretariat’s Expenses $ 3,648,806 $ 3,368,310 $ 3,811,103 
Average Subscription per Member1 $ 138 $ 137 $ 136
Average Expense per Member1 $ 190 $ 166 $ 179
 
tOtAL ReVeNUe $ 16,905,2902 $ 19,889,9452 $ 21,420,281 2 
tOtAL eXPeNSeS $ 13,260,8322 $ 14,145,5702 $ 16,247,684 2

 
ShARe OF PROFIt OF ASSOCIAteS (Net OF tAX) $ 38,8582 $ 12,1032 $ 8,452 2

 
INCOMe tAX eXPeNSeS $ 658,8362 $ 986,3402 $ 864,142 2

 
tOtAL SURPLUS FOR the YeAR $ 3,024,4802  $ 4,770,1382 $ 4,316,907 2

1 This is based solely on members’ subscriptions and does not take into account other sources of income
2 Consolidated figure
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Membership Profile
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There was an increase in membership growth rate of 5.1 per 
cent in 2009, with the Institute’s membership surpassing the 
21,000 mark.
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The Year In Review
Taking a Leadership Role

CPA Singapore Powwow 1: “Business Confidence, 
Concerns & Control in Volatile Times” 

ICPAS-ACRA Event: “Financial Reporting 
Challenges in the Current Global Economic Crisis” 

CPA Singapore Powwow 2: “The Shifting Power 
Balance: Is Gender the Issue?”  

98th Asean Federation of Accountants (AFA) 
Meeting 

ICPAS Dinner & Dialogue 2009: “Upping the Ante 
of Gen Y Talent in Nation Building”

FRS 1: “How a Revised Accounting Standard 
Affects You”

Committee to Develop the Accountancy Sector 
(CDAS) Public Consultation Forum

ICPAS Inaugural Pre-Budget Roundtable 2010

CFO Forum – “Business Intelligence: A Useful 
Tool for these Challenging Times” 
(Jointly organised with Microsoft Singapore) 

ICPAS – ACRA Event: “Forum on Code of 
Professional Conduct & Ethics” 

AFA - ICPAS Dialogue Session - ASEAN 
Regionalisation Prospects and Capital Markets

Thought Leadership Professional Development

14

To increase brand awareness and visibility, the Institute rolled out several 
initiatives branded under the following categories:

Through platforms such as seminars and 
roundtables, the Institute strengthened its thought 
leadership position. Participants at our seminars 
have extended beyond members to include  
business leaders, government agencies and  
members of the public. In 2009, among the 
distinguished leaders who were part of our thought 
leadership initiatives were Mrs Lim Hwee Hua, 
Minister in Prime Minister’s Office and Second 
Minister for Finance and Transport; Ms Penny Low,  
Member of Parliament, Pasir Ris-Punggol GRC; Ms 
Jessica Tan, Member of Parliament, East Coast 
GRC and Chairman, Government Parliamentary 
Committee for Finance and Trade & Industry; Ms 
Juthika Ramanathan, Chief Executive of Accounting 

and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) and  
Dr Ahmad Magad, Member of Parliament, Pasir  
Ris-Punggol GRC. 

In January 2010, ICPAS held its inaugural Pre-Budget 
Roundtable, bringing together business leaders 
from diverse fields for a discussion on the Singapore 
Budget prior to the Budget announcement. The event 
was co-chaired by Ms Jessica Tan, Chairman of the 
Government Parliamentary Committee for Finance 
and Trade & Industry, and  Dr Ernest Kan, President 
of ICPAS. 

For the year in review, ICPAS’ thought and practice 
leadership seminars as well as CPE programmes 
reached out to more than 12,000 participants.

At the CPA Singapore Powwow 1: ”Business Confidence in Volatile 
Times”. (From left): Mr Aw Soon Beng, CEO and Executive Director 
of Westcomb Financial Group, Dr Ernest Kan, President of ICPAS,  
Ms Penny Low, Member of Parliament, Pasir Ris-Punggol GRC  
and Mr Tim Hird, Director, Robert Half International.

Ms Jessica Tan, MD of Microsoft Singapore, Chairman of 
Government Parliamentary Committee for Finance and Trade 
& Industry at the CFO Forum, jointly organised by ICPAS and 
Microsoft Singapore.
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Public Accountants Lunch Talk Series: Mergers 
and Acquisitions Of Accounting Practices

 Forum on Small and Medium Sized Practices 

Public Accountants Conference 2009 
(organised by ACRA with ICPAS as the strategic 
partner)

ICPAS Technical Group Discussion for Practising 
Members  – Case Study on the Application of FRS 
107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

ICPAS Networking Event on Mergers and 
Acquisitions of Accounting Practices

Forum on the Practice Monitoring Programme 

ICPAS Technical Group Discussion for Practising 
Members – “Understanding the Business 
Environment in China and highlights of the China 
Accounting Standards”

ICPAS- ACRA Event: “XBRL -Singapore Business 
Reporting Seminar” 

Seminar on Observations by the FSRC

ICPAS Technical Group Discussion for Practising 
Members – Issues Encountered in Applying the 
Principles and Computation of Deferred Tax

Practice Leadership Practice Development

At CPA Singapore Powwow 2: ”The Shifting Power Balance: Is Gender the Issue?”, panelists discussed the issue of corporate leadership positions 
for women. (From left): Ms Melissa hyak (Moderator) Presenter, Channel NewsAsia;  Mr Gerard Ee, ICPAS Vice President; Mrs Lim hwee hwa,  
Minister in the Prime Minister’s Office and Second Minister for Finance and Transport; Ms Saw Phaik hwa, President and CEO of SMRT Corp;  
Mr Declan O’Sullivan, Director, Kerry Consulting. 

The panelists for the first session of the Public Accountants 
Conference 2009. (From left) Mr Melvin Yong, Channel NewsAsia; 
Mr Yap Chee Keong, Advisor of Singapore Power Limited and 
Independent and Non-Executive Director; The Straits Trading 
Company Ltd; Mr Gautam Banerjee, Executive Chairman, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Singapore; Mr Vincent Chen,Chairman, 
Corporate Governance Committee, Securities Investors Association, 
Singapore; Mr Lee White, General Manager, Standards and 
Public Affairs, Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and  
AP Foo See Liang, Singapore Management University.

At The Singapore Business Reporting Seminar. (From left)  
Mr Tang Kok Kwai, ICPAS IT Committee Chairman, Mr Andre van 
Zyl, Principal, WhK horwath, Dr Ernest Kan, President of ICPAS,  
Mr Ivan Khoo, head (XBRL office), ACRA, Ms Ong Suat Ling, Director, 
Assurance and Advisory Business Services, Ernst & Young Singapore  
and Ms Jerlene Tan, Policy Analyst (XBRL office), ACRA.
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Ms Juthika Ramanathan
Chief Executive
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority

The growth and vibrancy of Singapore’s accountancy sector will contribute 

to the enhancement of  the nation’s competitiveness as an international 

business and financial hub. We are happy to see ICPAS progressively 

taking on a more active role in standard setting and raising audit quality 

and welcome ICPAS efforts to engage ACRA to work towards a common 

goal to advance and develop the accountancy sector. ”

“

Four ICPAS Council Members were appointed to 
the Committee to Develop the Accountancy Sector 
(CDAS) by the Ministry of Finance on 1 December 
2008. This Committee has been established to 
embark on a fundamental review of the accountancy 
sector, with the objective of positioning Singapore 
as the premier global hub in Asia for accountancy 
services and professionals. 

The members of the CDAS comprise top members 
of the accounting profession, the business 
community, academia and the public sector. ICPAS 
is represented on the Committee by President of 
ICPAS Dr Ernest Kan.

The Institute made conscientious efforts in engaging 
CDAS as it set out recommendations that will have 
wide-ranging impact on all sectors of the industry. 

The Institute continued to fulfill its role in engaging 
business and government on key issues. For a study 
on business reporting by the Ministry of Finance, 

Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority 
(ACRA) and Infocomm Development Authority 
of Singapore (IDA), the Institute’s focus group, led 
by members who are senior finance professionals, 
explored how to streamline business reporting to  
sustain Singapore’s position as the easiest place to 
do business. Twenty women members, led by ICPAS 
Council Member Professor Pang Yang hoong, 
were invited to a dialogue between the Prime 
Minister Mr Lee hsien Loong and some women’s 
organisations. Among the issues discussed were 
the impact of the global recession on Singapore,  
the country’s economic outlook as well as  
challenges for women in the new phase of 
Singapore’s economic development.

Upholding Standards 

Under the direction of ACRA, the Institute administers 
the Practice Monitoring Programme (PMP) for public 
accountants who audit non-public interest entities.

Voice of the Profession

16
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PMP governed under the Accountants Act, provides  
a critical regulatory framework to promote audit 
quality. By ascertaining whether the work of public 
accountants is compliant with the prescribed 
auditing standards, methods and procedures,  
PMP provides the industry with quality assurance. In 
addition, the Institute also developed programmes 
catering to different needs, to educate and inform 
public accountants about the latest standards and 
procedures. 

For the year in review, the number of reviews 
conducted by the PMP team has increased from an 
average of 5 to 10 per month, a 100 per cent increase.

expanding Our Footprint

We made tremendous progress in increasing our 
international footprint. The renewal of the Mutual 
Recognition Agreement (MRA), between ICPAS and 
CPA Australia has provided a common platform 
for both organisations. Likewise, our MRA with 
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants 

(ACCA) and our Memorandum of Cooperation (MOC) 
with overseas bodies such as the Vietnam Association  
of Certified Public Accountants, Cambodia National 
Accounting Council, Kampuchea Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and Auditors and the Chinese 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants played a 
fundamental role in promoting the advancement of 
the accountancy profession. 

International Recognition

Beyond the various bilateral agreements that were 
sealed, one significant milestone that heightened 
our brand recognition worldwide is our member-
ship into the prestigious International Innovation 
Network (IIN) at an Extraordinary General Meeting 
held in Dublin on 20 July. The Institute joined 17 
other renowned accounting institutes from around 
the world as the 18th member of the network. This is 
an important milestone for the Institute and signaled 
the acknowledgement of the Institute’s stature by 
the major accountancy bodies worldwide.

Mr Khoo ho Tong, ICPAS Treasurer (left) presenting a token of 
appreciation to Mr Glynn Lowth, President of Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants UK.

(From left) A delegation from the European Commission visited the Institute in September. Mr Ramchand Jagtiani, ICPAS Technical 
Division Deputy Director, Ms Janet Tan, Executive Director of ICPAS, Dr Ernest Kan, President of ICPAS, Mr Pierre Delsaux, Director, Free 
Movement of Capital, Company Law and Corporate Governance, Directorate-General, Internal Market and Services, European Commission,  
Mr Moumen hamdouch, head of Section Trade and Economic Affairs, European Union, Delegation of the European Commission to Singapore, 
Mr Benjamin Cheam, Chief Operating Officer of ICPAS and Mr Thibault heuzé, International Relations for External Aspects of the Internal 
Market, Internal Market and Services, European Commission.

Dr Ernest Kan, President of ICPAS (left) presenting a token of 
appreciation to Mr. Noboru Kojima, President of Chiyoda Branch  
of The Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

17
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During the year, the Institute hosted and attended 
regional events. 

The Institute hosted the 98th ASEAN Federation of 
Accountants (AFA) council meeting on 1 August. 
The event saw leaders and delegates from the 
region’s accounting bodies gather to discuss salient 
issues facing the accountancy sector and explore 
collaboration opportunities. 

In December, President of ICPAS, Dr Ernest Kan and 
a few Council members represented the Institute at 
the 16th AFA conference to share best practices in 
finance and accounting management. 

These events provided a platform for the Institute 
to widen our network and strengthen ties with our 
counterparts from the region as well as explore 
collaboration opportunities to further our goal of 
global recognition.  

The Institute continued to work towards strengthen-
ing ties with other accountancy bodies and 
exchanging best practices with our counterparts 
around the world.

International Relations

Ms Cairine Wilson
Chairperson, IIN 

The International Innovation Network (IIN) is pleased to welcome the 

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) as our 

newest member. In 2009, ICPAS was voted in as a member by our 17 

national accountancy bodies.  IIN’s key focus is on knowledge sharing to 

advance the accounting profession internationally. We look forward very 

much to the contributions ICPAS will make as a committed participant 

in our global network. In turn, IIN will assist ICPAS to provide their 

members with innovative information, products and services.”

“

18
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March		 Chartered	Institute	of	Management	
2009		 Accountants
 Mr Glynn Lowth, President CIMA UK
 Mr R Dhinakaran, President CIMA 

Singapore
 Ms Sopiah Suid, Regional Director –  

South East Asia, CIMA, Malaysian Division

 Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	in	
Australia

 Mr Richard Deutsch, President
 Mr Bill Palmer, Director Asia
 Mr Jonathan Chi, Chairman,  

ICAA Singapore Member’s Group

April	 CPA	Australia
2009		 Mr Paul Wappett, Executive Director
 Ms Margaret Webb, Technical Advisor

May	 The	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants
2009		 of	Scotland
 Mr Douglas Nisbet, President

 The	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	
in	England	and	Wales

 Mr Mark Billington, Regional Director,  
South East Asia

 The	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	
in	England	and	Wales

 Mr David Furst, President

June	 The	Association	of	Chartered	Certified	
2009		 Accountants
 Ms helen Brand, Chief Executive

 The	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	
in	Australia

 Mr Graham Meyer, Chief Executive Officer
 Mr Bill Palmer, Director Asia

 CPA	Australia	
 Prof. Carrick Martin, Chairman,  

Disciplinary Panel
 Mr Michael Denham, Manager  

Professional Conduct

July		 Vietnam	Association	of	Certified	Public		
2009		 Accountants

 CPA	Australia
 Mr Peter Docherty, General Manager –  

Public Practice

September	 Hong	Kong	Institute	of	Certified	Public	
2009		 Accountants
 Mr Chris Joy, Executive Director

 Sri	Lanka	Accounting	and	Auditing	
Standards	Monitoring	Board

 Mr Ajith Ratnayake, Director General

 European	Commission

 Mr Pierre Delsaux, Director, Free 
Movement of Capital, Company Law and 
Corporate Governance, Directorate-
General, Internal Market and Services, 
European Commission 
Mr Moumen hamdouch, head of Section 
Trade and Economic Affairs, European 
Union, Delegation of the European 
Commission to Singapore 
Mr Thibault heuzé, International 
Relations for External Aspects of the 
Internal Market, Internal Market and 
Services, European Commission

October	 Japan	Institute	of	Certified	Public		
2009		 Accountants	–	Tokyo	Branch

November	 Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	
2009		 Scotland
  Mr Ken McManus, Assistant Director  
 Members Services

	 Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	
India	–	Indore	Chapter

February		 The	Association	of	Chartered	Certified		
2010		 Accountants		
	 Ms helen Brand, Chief Executive 
 Ms May Law, Director Asia Pacific

During the year in review, the Institute hosted visits by representatives from the following 
accountancy bodies.
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To grow the accountancy sector, it is important to 
nurture the talent pool of qualified CPA Singapore 
as well as aspiring accountants. Singapore 
Accountancy Academy (SAA) continued to cater to the  
education needs of close to 6,000 students in various 
professional and undergraduate programmes. This 
was in addition to providing continuous professional 
education to more than 21,000 members in 2009. 

SAA was awarded the Singapore Quality Class 
for Private Education Organisations (SQC-PEO) 
in November 2005 and met the requirements 
for the 1st renewal in February 2009. Based  
on the international business excellence model, 
the SQC Business Excellence Framework enables 
organisations to adopt a total approach in managing 
people, processes and customers to achieve better 
business results. This signifies that SAA has adopted 
defined and prevention-based approaches on its 
business excellence journey.

As at end 2009, more than 160 members who were 
eligible for the status of Fellow CPA Singapore (FCPA) 
were inducted into the distinguished group of senior 
members of the Institute. Valued by the industry for 
their vast experience, technical expertise and wide 
knowledge base, FCPAs Singapore are part of the 
talent pool of professionals that is critical to the 
development of Singapore’s economy.   

SAA has started work on the development of a 
comprehensive school management system, which 
will allow it to reap operational efficiencies and boost 
its capabilities. Testing and implementation will 
begin in the third quarter of 2010.

During the year, the Institute also launched a 
members’ profile update exercise. Member services 
division has started the development of a new 
membership service system to better serve the 
needs of our existing members and facilitate future 
membership growth. 

Nurturing talent, Building Capabilities
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Continuing Professional education

ICPAS continues to provide members with 
supportive and enriching programmes, workshops 
and seminars to ensure members are kept up to date 
on changes in accounting standards as well as the 
latest financial instruments and tools. 

The CPE programmes offered by the Institute span a 
range of topics, including XBRL reporting, changes 
in FRSs, fair value accounting, financial analysis, 
financial modelling as well as the latest issues in 
corporate governance and professional ethics.

For the year in review, more than 200 seminars, 
forums, luncheons and dinner talks were held. 

Members’ Activities

Over 50 events including health and wellness 
seminars, personal grooming workshops, culinary 
classes, personal development seminars, sporting 
events, business management and wealth 
management workshops were organised for 
members.

Members’ Benefits and Privileges

Members enjoyed close to 30 dining, shopping and 
personal grooming offers from popular merchants  
in 2009. Our members also enjoyed exclusive rate 
to the inaugural ICPAS Dinner and Dialogue at The 
Ritz Carlton on the 6 November with ICPAS Advisor  
Mr Teo Ser Luck.

My training in accountancy and subsequent experience as an accountant 

has served me well in my current role as CEO. Being associated with 

ICPAS has also allowed me to stay updated and relevant on the latest 

accountancy trends and standards which are critical in today’s corporate 

environment.

“

”

Mr Tan Choon Seng, FCPA Singapore

Group CEO
WBL Corporation Limited (Wearnes)
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Committed to corporate social responsibility, 
the Institute actively contributed to charities and 
championed community projects during the year.

The Institute started off the year by bringing cheer 
to over 200 children, senior citizens and adults with 
disabilities from eight charitable organisations 
at our Annual Reach Out by inviting them to a 
sumptuous lunch at NUSS Kent Ridge Guild house. 
The beneficiaries from The Blue Cross Thong Keng 
home, Chen Su Lan Methodist Children’s home, 
Christalite Methodist home, Geylang East home for 
the Aged, Ju Eng home for Senior Citizens, and Tai 
Pei Old People’s home were also treated to a magic 
show and Teochew opera.

The Institute also embarked on a tutoring 
programme in Principles of Accounts for needy 
students, organised visits for students to 
accounting firms and conducted career talks with 
schools to present students with insights into the 
profession. These initiatives, directed at secondary 
school students, stemmed from our strong belief 
in fostering, nurturing and inculcating an interest 
in accountancy within the younger generation  
in Singapore. 

ICPAS, together with Nanyang Business School 
Auditing & Assurance Team (NAAT), reached out to 
underprivileged children from Pertapis Children home 
in September and accompanied the children on a 
treasure trail at Singapore Botanic Gardens. 

In the same month, ICPAS partnered with Singapore 
Management University (SMU) on its inaugural 
accountancy case competition. 

As with previous years, ICPAS granted scholarships 
worth $1,500 each to help deserving students  
fund their undergraduate studies. In 2009, eight 
scholarships were given to accountancy students 
from Singapore Management University and 
Nanyang Technological University.

In support of volunteerism, ICPAS signed a 
Memorandum of Understanding with People’s 
Association on 18 January 2010 to encourage more 
than 21,000 members to volunteer with PA’s 
2,000 Grassroots Organisations. The MOU aims 
to encourage ICPAS members to contribute their 
skills in aid of the community, while grassroots 
organisations benefit by having professional 
expertise to oversee their finances.

In January 2010, ICPAS also sponsored the 
“Volunteerism As a Way of Life” forum, held  
in celebration of the World Expo 2010 in  
Shanghai. Organised by MediaCorp and the  
World Expo 2010 committee, the forum aimed  
to encourage volunteerism at the personal and 
corporate levels. President of ICPAS Dr Ernest  
Kan was one of the panelists at the forum,  
which discussed issues such as enhancing  
the volunteer experience and encouraging  
volunteerism.  

In January 2010, ICPAS signed an MOU with PA to encourage 
its members to volunteer their skills and time with grassroots 
organisations. (From left) PA’s Chief Executive  Director Mr Tan 
Boon huat and  President of ICPAS  Dr Ernest Kan at the MOU  
signing ceremony.

Dr Ernest Kan (second from left) spoke about his views on 
volunteerism at the “Volunteerism As a Way of Life” forum, 
sponsored by ICPAS.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Based on results from a readership survey, the frequency of ICPAS’ 
Singapore Accountant journal was increased from bi-monthly to 
monthly from January 2010.

As pre-publicity for its Annual Dinner & Dialogue in 2009, ICPAS 
conducted interviews with experts on Gen Y issues and disseminated 
the interviews via podcast.

At a time when information is not only abundant but 
also dynamic, we put in place an infrastructure to 
ensure that our members and the public are kept 
abreast of the latest happenings at the Institute and 
the industry.
 
In January 2009, the Institute revamped its 
ePublication, CPA Singapore Wire. Beyond 
highlighting the latest news and events from the 
Institute, the weekly eNewsletter also offers a feature 
on topical issues and an online Poll. 

A multi-media section was also created on the 
ICPAS website, allowing the public to view videos of 
significant ICPAS events. 

To be more attuned to members’ needs, ICPAS 
conducted a readership survey of its Singapore 
Accountant journal.  Based on the results, a revamp 
was planned for Singapore Accountant in 2010, 
which saw it going from a bi-monthly to a monthly 
issue. As part of the revamp, more industry-specific 
content was added in the journal. 

ICPAS also launched a new platform in collaboration 
with The Straits Times called the CPA Clinic in 
September 2009. This eight part monthly column in 
the SME page of The Straits Times Money section 
is meant to showcase and promote the capabilities 

and services of the Institute, as well as the value that  
CPA Singapore professionals bring to organisations 
as finance and business leaders. 

Emergent media has changed the way organisations 
communicate with their stakeholders. Being attuned 
to these changes in the media landscape, we added   
social media platforms to our communications 
channels. A CPA Singapore blog was created. To 
publicise the ICPAS Dinner & Dialogue, we created 
a contest inviting blog entries on the topic “Upping 
the Ante of Gen Y Talent in Nation Building”, with 
the winner of the best entry sharing 10 minutes 
with guest of honour Mr Teo Ser Luck on stage.  
We also generated interest on the topic through 
podcast interviews of hR experts. Other emergent 
media platforms such as Facebook, Twitter 
and Flickr were added to the communications 
mix, complementing the Institute’s traditional  
media strategies. 

As a consequence of the communication and branding 
efforts undertaken by the Institute, measurable 
success is evident judging by the number of media 
hits that were recorded. With mentions in 110 media 
stories in 2009, the Institute registered more than 
100 per cent increase in media coverage compared 
to the previous year. This boosted ICPAS’ visibility 
and raised awareness of the CPA Singapore brand.

Communications and Branding
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Committees’ Review
Accounting Standards Committee
Tham Sai Choy – Chairman Kok Moi Lre 
Sajjad Akhtar Kon Yin Tong 
Ang Hao Yao Ng Eng Juan
Shariq Barmaky (appointed on 14.7.09) Ong Sim Ho 
Esther Bay Nagaraj Sivaram
Boon Yoon Chiang Tan Boon Siong
Chia Siew Eng Pearl Tan Hock Neo
Evelyn Chin Foong Yoke Henry Tan Song Kok
Hamish Christie Teo Cheow Tong
Foong Daw Ching  Yeo Ek Khuan
Goh Ann Nee  

The Committee appointed for the 2009/2010 term took office on 19 May 2009 and met on 5 August, 28 September and  
2 December 2009.

The Committee continued working closely with the Accounting Standards Council (AS Council) in reviewing new accounting 
proposals and proposed Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs). The FRSs are almost entirely converged with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International Accounting Standards (IASs) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB).

During the 2009/2010 term, the Committee formed 3 sub-committees – the Core sub-Committee, which functions as the 
technical sub-committee, the Education sub-committee, and the Focus Group sub-committee. 

(1) The Core Sub-Committee

 The Core Sub-Committee is chaired by Mr Tham Sai Choy. During the 2009/2010 term, the Core Sub-Committee held 5 
meetings to discuss and comment on various accounting pronouncements issued by the IASB. The dates of the meetings 
were 25 August, 27 August, 29 September, 21 October and 2 December. 

 During the year, the following FRSs, interpretations to financial reporting standards (INT FRS), and amendments to FRSs 
and INT FRSs were issued by the AS Council, subsequent to the Institute’s comments, in chronological order:

 Name of Pronouncement

 • Amendment to FRS 39 & FRS 107 - Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date & Transition 
 • INT FRS 117 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
 • Amendments to FRS 107 - Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
 • INT FRS 118 Transfers of Assets from Customers
 • Amendments to INT FRS 109 and FRS 39 - Embedded Derivatives 
 • FRS 27 (Amended 2009) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements  
 • FRS 103 (Revised 2009) Business Combinations
 • FRS 101 (Revised 2009) First-Time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
 • Amendments to FRSs – Improvement to FRSs 2009
 • Amendments to FRS 101 - Additional Exemptions for First-time adopters
 • Amendments to FRS 102 - Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions
 • Amendment to FRS 32 - Classifications of Rights Issues

 (Note: The Amendments to FRS 102 had the effect of repealing INT FRS 108 and INT FRS 111)

 Between 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009, the Committee deliberated on the following IFRS, Exposure Drafts (ED), 
Discussion Papers (DP), and Request for Information issued by the IASB; and IFRIC Draft Interpretation issued by the 
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC). 

 Apart from IFRSs, the Committee prepared comment letters taking into account comments received from the stakeholders. 
The comment letters were forwarded to the ICPAS Council for approval and then to the AS Council. For IFRSs, the 
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Committee forwarded its comments on adopting IFRSs/IFRICs as equivalents in Singapore, to the ICPAS Council for 
approval, and thereafter to the AS Council.

 IFRS
 IFRS for Small and Medium Entities 

 Exposure Drafts
 (in chronological order, according to date of issuance by AS Council for comments by the public in Singapore)

 • ED Proposed Amendments to IFRS 7 - Investments in Debt Instruments

 • ED Proposed Amendments to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39 - Embedded Derivatives 

 (Note: The proposed amendments in the ED were taken up by the AS Council via the Amendments to INT FRS 109 and FRS 
39- Embedded Derivatives, issued by the AS Council on 23 April 2009)

 • ED Relationships with the State (Proposed amendments to IAS 24)

 • ED Consolidated Financial Statements

 • ED Proposed Amendments to IFRIC 9 and IFRIC 16 (Note: The proposed amendments in the ED were 
  taken up by the AS Council in INT FRS 109 and INT FRS 116 respectively via the Amendments to FRSs 
  – Improvement to FRSs 2009 issued by the AS Council on 22 June 2009)

 • ED Income Tax

 • ED Derecognition (Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7)

 • ED Proposed Amendments to IFRIC 14

 • ED Fair Value Measurement

 • ED Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

 • ED Classifications of Rights Issues (Proposed Amendment to IAS 32) 

 (Note: The proposed amendments in the ED were taken up by the AS Council in the Amendment to FRS 32- Classifications 
of Rights Issues, issued by the AS Council on 18 November 2009)

 • ED Proposed Amendments to IAS 19 (Discount rate for Employee benefits)

 • ED Rate-Regulated Activities 

 • ED Management Commentary

 • ED Improvements to IFRSs

 • ED Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters  
  (Proposed Amendment to IFRS 1).

 Discussion Papers
 (in chronological order, according to date of issuance by AS Council for comments by the public in Singapore)

 • DP Preliminary Views on Revenue Recognition in Contracts with Customers
 • DP Preliminary Views on Leases
 • DP Credit Risk in Liability Measurement and Staff Paper - Accompanying the DP

 Request for Information
 Impairment of Financial Assets: Expected Cash Flow Approach 

 IFRIC Draft Interpretation
 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

(2) The Education sub-committee
 The Education sub-committee’s objective is to educate non-accounting trained stakeholders using 4 streams - seminars, 

articles, media and publications. The Chairman of the Education sub-committee is Mr Henry Tan Song Kok. 

(3) The Focus Group sub-committee
 The Focus Group sub-committee was set up to obtain feedback from members and other stakeholders through focus 

groups. The purpose of each focus group is to identify accounting issues arising from specific accounting pronouncements 
or from the lack of guidance, and to report back to the Committee through the sub-committee. Its members are the 
stakeholders which may potentially be affected by the newly issued pronouncements. The Chairman of the Focus Group 
sub-committee is Mr Sajjad Akhtar. 



26

Accreditation Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Lim Boon Cheng
Gerard Ee Hock Kim Pang Yang Hoong
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong Gillian Yeo Hian Heng
Kevin Kwok Yeoh Oon Jin

During the year, the Committee reviewed its terms of reference to ensure that these were aligned with the Institute’s strategies. 
The Committee also fine-tuned the guidelines for accreditation and established principles for reviewing qualifications. 
 
Arising from the provisional accreditation of the NUS’ Bachelor of Business Administration (Accountancy) program in 2008, 
the Committee considered a report of the programme provided by NUS and have requested for more information from the 
academic institution to enable it to carry out further assessment.

Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee 
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman Joshua Ong Kian Guan
Yeoh Oon Jin – Deputy Chairman Premila Gowri Shankar
Shariq Barmaky Sherry Quark (Alternate: Julia Tay)  - observer from ACRA
Chiam Yah Fang (appointed on 24.6.09) Siew Wun Mui
Foo See Liang Reggie Thein
Kuan Cheng Tuck Valerie Tong
Paul Lee Seng Meng Lucas Tran Phuoc
Lim Boon Cheng Jeffrey Wong
Mak Keat Meng Wong-Yeow Anna Irene
Julie Ng (Alternate: Low Jin Kwan) Yeo Boon Chye
 

Following a public call for nominations, the re-constituted Committee had completed its work for the first year.  The enhanced 
nominations process for the Committee, administered jointly by ACRA and ICPAS, serves to promote public confidence in the 
process of setting auditing standards.

On 2 April 2009, representatives from the Committee were involved in organising a joint ICPAS-ACRA event “Financial Reporting 
Challenges in the Current Global Economic Crisis”, which covered auditing, forensic accounting and financial restructuring 
considerations in 2009.

During the year, the Committee provided comments on various discussion papers issued by the Steering Committee for Review 
of the Companies Act, and the Singapore Exchange Limited’s (SGX) consultation paper on “Proposed Amendments to the 
Listing Rules”.

Representatives of the Committee, CFO Committee and Corporate Finance Committee engaged the Corporate Finance Division 
of the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) and the SGX in a dialogue meeting on 16 December 2009 to discuss capital 
markets developments and auditing related matters.  These include the current state of the Catalist market, joint SGX-ICPAS 
initiatives to assist CFOs / FCs, draft comfort letters guidance, recent negative perception of S-chips, reiterating Singapore’s 
robust capital markets framework and listing rules, etc.

During the year, the Institute’s Council, on the recommendation of the Committee, approved the following:

• Sample Auditor’s Report on Summary Financial Statements (Appendix 3C of Audit Guidance Statement (AGS) 1 Sample 
Auditor’s Reports)

• Various clarity Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs):

• SSQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and Other Assurance and 
Related Services Engagements

• SSA 200 Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with Singapore Standards 
on Auditing

• SSA 220 Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements 

• SSA 250 Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements

• SSA 320 Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit 

• SSA 450 Evaluation of Misstatements Identified during the Audit 

• SSA 500 Audit Evidence 



27

• SSA 501 Audit Evidence – Specific Considerations for Selected Items 

• SSA 505 External Confirmations

• SSA 520 Analytical Procedures 

• SSA 530 Audit Sampling 

• SSA 550 Related Parties

• SSA 570 Going Concern 

• SSA 610 Using the Work of Internal Auditors 

• SSA 620 Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert 

• Conforming amendments to SSRE 2410 Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of 
the Entity arising from the clarity SSA 200

As of 31 December 2009, the Committee was considering issues in relation to proposed new or revised auditing pronouncements 
on the following matters:

• Comfort Letters and Other Assistance for Public Offerings of Equity Securities in Singapore
• The Independent Auditor’s Report on General Purpose Financial Statements
• Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report
• Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter(s) Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report
• Special Considerations - Audits of Special Purpose Financial Statements and Specific Elements, Accounts or Items of a 

Financial Statement
• Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements
• Initial Audit Engagements - Opening Balances
• Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements
• Comparative Information - Corresponding Figures and Comparative Financial Statements
• Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Third Party Service Organisation
• Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control
• Assurance Reports on Controls at a Third Party Service Organisation

ACRA is responsible for the control and regulation of the practice of the profession of accountancy by public accountants and 
accounting entities.  The Public Accountants Oversight Committee (PAOC) is responsible for assisting ACRA in the discharge of 
this duty.  ACRA adopts the standards issued by ICPAS and in doing so undertakes oversight of the process followed by ICPAS in 
developing and issuing the standards.

The objective of the PAOC’s oversight over the AASC is to ensure that the development of the auditing standards, to be adopted 
by ACRA, is robust and credible and promotes public confidence in the process of setting auditing standards.

Banking & Finance Committee
Chua Kim Chiu – Chairman Dominic Nixon
Cheng Ai Phing – Deputy Chairperson Ong Ai Boon
Prakesh Ambelal Desai Martin Wharam (appointed on 23.9.09)
Lee Wai Fai (appointed on 23.9.09) Wilson Woo
Leong Kok Keong Yap Chee Meng 
Judy Ng May Lian (appointed on 23.9.09) 
 
The Committee for the 2009/10 term held two meetings, on 13 August 2009 and 10 November 2009.  Discussions were around 
the terms of reference, membership composition of the Committee and the need to revise Recommended Accounting Practice 
7 Reporting Framework for Unit Trusts.

The Committee also discussed the following Exposure Drafts (ED), Discussion Paper (DP), and Request for Information issued 
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB); and IFRIC Draft Interpretations issued by the International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).

Exposure Drafts
• ED Fair Value Measurement
• ED Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
• ED Classifications of Rights Issues (Proposed Amendment to IAS 32) 



28

Discussion Paper
• DP  Credit Risk in Liability Measurement and Staff Paper - Accompanying the DP

Request for Information
• Impairment of Financial Assets: Expected Cash Flow Approach 

IFRIC Draft Interpretation
• Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

In its continual efforts to engage the relevant authorities to discuss and resolve issues in the banking and finance industry, the 
Committee had a dialogue session on 1 December 2009 with the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) on the following main 
issues: 
• Centralisation of Financial Institutions’ Corporate Governance or Risk Management Structure;
• Ad-Hoc Auditors’ Reports Required by MAS; and
• Collective Impairment Assessment Under MAS Notice 612

Board of Education and Examiners
Gillian Yeo Hian Heng – Chairperson Lian Wee Cheow
Cheung Pui Yuen Pang Yang Hoong
Chew Tong Gunn 
 
The Committee streamlined the Institute’s Professional Examination guidelines so as to ensure that the ICPAS Professional 
Examination (PE) continues to maintain its quality and standard for accounting graduates to qualify as Certified Public 
Accountants Singapore (CPA Singapore). 

During the year, the Committee has reviewed the terms of reference to align with the Institute’s strategic objectives “AIM” set 
by ICPAS management. 

The Committee has enhanced the entry requirement for admission to the Professional Examination and fine-tuned the core 
subjects requirements. They continued to play the roles of policies setting for ICPAS PE including reviewing and setting of 
examination guidelines. They have resolved critical issues arising from the respective module examinations such as revising 
the project guidelines and fine-tuning the roles of both assessors and examiners to ensure a proper checking mechanism is 
in place.

In 2009, the Committee has approved 269 new applications for admission to PE and contributed to a constant growth in the 
number of PE candidates. 

Apart from policies setting, the BOEE members have evaluated the syllabus of the qualifying subjects to allow PE candidates to 
take Business Law from Curtin as a qualifying subject to fulfill the core subject requirement.

CFO Committee
Soh Gim Teik  – Chairman Jong Voon Hoo
Loo Wen Lieh – Deputy Chairman Lai Chin Yee
Chow Kam Wing 
 
The Committee continued to provide a platform to address the professional needs of the Institute’s members by organising 
and participating in conferences, workshops, round-table discussions and networking sessions for Chief Financial Officers, 
Financial Controllers, Finance Directors etc. 

On 25 June 2009, the Committee had participated in the event “CFO Forum on Business Intelligence: A Useful Tool For these 
Challenging Times”. This was a ICPAS and Microsoft joint event under the Professional Development Initiative.

Representatives of the Committee, Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee and Corporate Finance Committee engaged 
the Corporate Finance Division of the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) and the Singapore Exchange Limited (SGX) in a 
dialogue meeting on 16 December 2009 to discuss capital markets developments and auditing related matters. The Committee 
highlighted the challenges faced by CFOs and suggested joint initiatives between ICPAS and SGX in assisting CFOs/FCs facing 
these challenges. Other matters discussed include the current state of the Catalist market, recent negative perception of 
S-chips, reiterating Singapore’s robust capital markets framework and listing rules, etc.
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The Committee also provided comments on the SGX’s consultation paper on “Proposed Amendments to the Listing Rules”, 
Attorney General Chambers’ discussion paper on review of the Companies Act and the Committee to Develop the Accountancy 
Sector’s exposure document for public consultation.

Community, Social & Sports Advisory Panel
Yim Kam May – Chairperson Lo Wei Min
Wong Lai Yong  – Deputy Chairperson Loo Wen Lieh
Robin Chia Chiew Meng Alvin Phua Chun Yen
Michael Heng Yeow Meng David Phua Puay Heng
Ho Nai Chuen Tang Shiuh Huei
Helen Lee Lai Ken Micolle Yeo Siew Huay

The following events and activities were organised in 2009:

Movie Screening of Transformers 2: Revenge of the Fallen
Movie screening of “Transformers 2” was held on 25 June 2009 and was attended by 100 members. Members were entertained 
with great action and fantastic effects throughout the movie. 

Family Day on board the Cheng Ho Cruise
Over 200 members and their families celebrated ICPAS Family Day with an evening of food and fun on board the Cheng Ho 
Cruise. They were also treated to a stunning firework display and air stunts from the National Day Preview. 

Farm Tour 
30 members and their families spent a morning of fun at the goat and frog farms on 5 September 2009. Members got to witness 
milking demonstration, taste fresh goat’s milk, handle a frog with their bare hands.  

Speechcraft 2009 by CPA Toastmasters
The CPA Toastmasters Club held a 4-part series programme entitled “Speechcraft 2009” on 6,13, 20 and 27 October 2009. This 
annual event aimed to help members build effective public speaking and presentation skills.  

The CPA Toastmasters met regularly every second and fourth Tuesdays of each month. 

Objective Rules Based Trading Workshop
On 28 October 2009, 30 members attended an Objective Rules Based Trading workshop to learn how to use orders combination 
and systematical trading tools, to capture trading opportunities.

Traditional Chinese Medicine & Healthy Living
A talk on Traditional Chinese Medicine (TCM) was organised on Thursday, 20 December 2009. Participants learnt about the 
basic concepts of TCM and the medical benefits of common herbs. They were also taught on how to massage the acuputure 
points to improve their health. 

Zap Your Stress & Emotional Pain with Flower Remedies
During the workshop, members learnt how to control their negative emotions, change them into positive ones and enjoy 
fulfillment in every arena of their lives using the safe, drug-free natural flower remedies. 

Community Service 
Over 60 members and staff supported the Run for Hope 2009 event by participating in the run at East Coast Park on 22 November 
2009. A donation of S$10,000 was raised.

CPA Games 
A total of 166 teams registered for the twenty-one games played this year. 

KPMG team won the overall Championship title for CPA Games 2009 and the Games came to a splendid end on 13 November 
2009 at the Closing cum Awards Presentation Dinner.    
   
Inter-Professional Games
ICPAS is once again the overall champion for the Inter-Professional Games 2009 for the third consecutive year. 
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In total, 10 games were played for the year of which, ICPAS won Badminton, Basketball, Bowling, Table-Tennis and came in 
second for IPG Golf.

Corporate Finance Committee
Chaly Mah – Chairman Tham Tuck Seng
Mah Kah Loon Raymond Tong
Tan Chian Khong Wong Kian Kok
Tham Sai Choy 
 
The Committee considers issues relating to corporate finance matters, typically by discussing and providing input on matters 
relating to corporate finance to the regulatory authorities and other corporate finance/investment banking organisations, and 
works  closely with other committees within the Institute on matters pertaining to accounting and auditing standards and to 
provide input on professional issues to the standards setters.

During the year, the Committee reviewed comments received from ACRA on the revision to Statement of Auditing Practice (SAP) 
24 “Auditors and Public Offering Documents”, and incorporated guidance on the revised SFR requirements and industry practice. 
The Committee identified some proposed revisions to SAP 25 “Audit of Listed Companies” for the Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Committee’s consideration. The Committee also provided comments on the Singapore Exchange Limited’s (SGX) 
consultation paper on “Proposed Amendments to the Listing Rules”.

The other main focus areas of initiatives going forward include strengthening the close linkages that ICPAS has with the 
regulators through dialogues on industry trends, issuance of articles on topical corporate finance issues, and engaging the 
constituent members of ICPAS who specialise in corporate finance. 

Representatives of the Committee, Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee and CFO Committee engaged the Corporate 
Finance Division of the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) and the SGX in a dialogue meeting on 16 December 2009 to 
discuss capital markets developments and auditing related matters.  These include the current state of the Catalist market, 
joint SGX-ICPAS initiatives to assist CFOs / FCs, draft comfort letters guidance, recent negative perception of S-chips, reiterating 
Singapore’s robust capital markets framework and listing rules, etc.

Corporate Governance Committee
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman Rohan Kamis
Gerard Ee Hock Kim – Deputy Chairman Lee Kin Wai
Bill Bowman Steven Phan
R. Dhinakaran Tom Yee Lat Shing 
Ho Yew Kee

The Committee utilised the expertise of its members as auditors, accountants, consultants, and company directors, drawing on 
their broad business experience to raise awareness of corporate governance issues and to promote fairness, transparency and 
accountability in the conduct of business. 

Mr Rohan Kamis and Mr R. Dhinakaran represented the Institute as participants in a roundtable discussion on related party 
transactions, jointly organised by the Corporate Governance & Financial Reporting Centre (CGFRC) and the Business Times in 
December 2009.

During the year, the Committee provided its comments on the SGX’s Consultation Paper on “Proposed Amendments to the 
Listing Rules”. The Consultation Paper aims to strengthen corporate governance practices and to foster greater disclosure 
among listed companies in Singapore.  
 
The Committee also provided its comments on the Discussion Papers issued by the Steering Committee for Review of the 
Companies Act on “Directors”, “Accounts & Audit”, Shareholders’ Rights & Meetings” and “Capital Maintenance and Shares, 
Schemes, Compulsory Acquisitions and Amalgamations”.
 
In acknowledgement of the importance of its role in the development, implementation and promotion of sound corporate 
governance, the Committee will continue to participate actively in projects associated with its objectives and to organise 
relevant seminars, talks, forums and dialogues on corporate governance. 
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CPE Advisory Panel
Foong Daw Ching – Chairman Koh Swee Tian
Ang Thiam Huat (appointed 14.7.09) Philip Lee Jee Cheng
Chia Kok Hwa Pok Soy Yoong
Ho Yew Kee Tom Yee Lat Shing

During the year, the Committee was set up to identify and propose topics and trainers for the CPE Programme. The Committee 
recommended that the Institute should focus on the training needs of the Practising Members from the Small & Medium 
Practices and Non Practising Members in Industry & Commerce. The Committee reviewed through some of the CPE programmes 
and provided inputs in terms of coverage for practising accountants as well as Accountants in Business.

The Committee also suggested that the Institute could form alliance with other professional bodies, the Big 4, the Law Society 
of Singapore, Tax Academy and the universities to jointly deliver relevant specialised topics. The Committee also recommend 
that once the core competencies of the practising accountant have been addressed, the Institute should consider working with 
both local as well as overseas institutions of higher learning to develop the framework of competencies for our Accountants in 
Business.

Disciplinary Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Steven Phan
Kon Yin Tong Sitoh Yih Pin
Lee Chee Wung Tom Yee Lat Shing
Loh Hoon Sun Gillian Yeo Hian Heng
 
The Committee dealt with 2 cases against non-practising CPAs submitted by the Investigation Committee. One member 
was suspended while disciplinary action against the other member had been deferred, as the case has been referred to the 
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) to determine whether the member has breached the Accountants Act.

Ethics Committee
Danny Teoh – Chairman Quek Shi Kui
Don Ho Mun-Tuke – Deputy Chairman Daniel Soh Chung Hian
Patrick Ang Tay Joo Soon 
Anthony Cheong Fook Seng Philip Yuen Ewe Jin
 
During the year, the Committee organised a joint event with ACRA on 23 July 2009, namely “Forum on Code of Professional 
Conduct and Ethics” with a panel discussion that shared views and experiences. This followed the issuance of the ICPAS and 
ACRA Codes of Professional Conduct and Ethics.  

The main focus areas of initiatives of the Committee include raising awareness of the new ethics code and enhanced 
communication on ethical matters. These could be achieved via CPE sessions and featuring case studies in publications going 
forward. 

During the year, the Committee initiated and deliberated on the findings of a members’ survey to gauge areas of interest on 
ethical issues. Enhanced guidance and resources on practical ethical issues faced by members would be an area of focus. The 
Committee will continue to consider and recommend initiatives to address members’ needs pertaining to ethical matters in 
applying the Code.

Examination Committee
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman Philip Lee Jee Cheng
Chee Hay Kheong Lim Boon Cheng
Ho Yew Kee Lim Lian Soon
 
The Examination Committee continued to oversee the overall function of the ICPAS/ACCA Joint Examination Scheme for its 
ACCA Professional Entry Route (PER) and Certified Accounting Technician (CAT) qualifications.

The Committee brought forward the recommendation to revise the current terms of reference to be in line with ICPAS’ strategic 
‘AIM’. The proposed new terms of reference approved by the Council being:
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• To oversee and monitor the quality of all the examinations of ICPAS/ACCA Joint Examination Scheme.

• Have an accountable and transparent ICPAS/ACCA Joint Examination framework.

• Develop a set of standards to ensure ICPAS/ACCA Joint Examination quality of every qualification proposed.

• Be empowered to appoint examining team who has met the minimum requirement stipulated in the regulations under 
  ICPAS/ACCA Joint Examination Scheme.

The Examination Committee maintained a close working relationship with the Singapore examination team to analyse feedback 
and propose recommendations to ACCA on various solutions to improve work processes, as the quality of the Singapore adapted 
papers had to be constantly improved. The Committee carried on to approve both the appointments and re-appointments of 
examiners, assessors and inspectors for the Singapore variant and adapted papers. 

Executive Committee
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman Khoo Ho Tong
Gerard Ee Hock Kim Tan Boen Eng 
 
The Executive Committee or EXCO, is responsible, on behalf of Council, for all matters relating to the development of broad 
policies and strategies and exercises a general oversight of the work programmes of the Institute to ensure the initiatives are 
aligned with the Institute’s new strategic plan for the next three years under the strategic pillars, Accountancy Excellence (A), 
Industry Growth (I) and Member & Human Capital Development (M), or the acronym, AIM.
 
During the year, a key focus of the Committee was on capabilities development and building the infrastructure to ensure that 
the Institute is well-positioned for strong and sustainable growth to bring it to the next level. The Institute invested in human 
resources with 26 new staff including 10 CPAs Singapore brought on board to strengthen the capabilities of the technical 
team and other divisions in ICPAS. Under the direction of the Committee, the Institute sharpened its focus to be the “go to” 
accountancy body in Singapore. To ensure the Institute has the requisite infrastructure to support its transformation to be a 
development Institute, the Committee recommended to Council on the implementation of the School Management System, 
Financial Management system, Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system and HR system. To ensure a nimble and 
responsive operation, the Committee also streamlined and consolidated various ICPAS committees so as to align them with the 
Institute’s strategic AIM and recommended to Council on the appointment of these committees. The move helped the Institute 
to reap greater operational efficiencies and synergies.
 
To the Committee, good corporate governance is of paramount importance. Hence, to better align the Institute’s operations with 
good corporate governance practices, Council members now make an annual declaration of interests and sign a confidentiality 
agreement. The Committee also fine-tuned policies relating to authorisation limits for expenditure.
 
To promote accountancy excellence through thought and practice leadership, the Committee approved the formation of the 
Business and Accounting Research Unit to build our research capabilities. The Committee also reviewed and provided input 
to the proposal on the Uniform Professional Examination (UPE) for submission to the Committee to Develop the Accountancy 
Sector in Singapore (CDAS) appointed by the government. 
 
On the international front, the Committee continued to deepen relations with other accountancy bodies. It was instrumental 
in the renewal of the Mutual Recognition Agreement (MRA) with CPA Australia for another five years. Under the direction of 
the Committee, the Institute became the 18th member of the International Innovation Network (IIN), joining 17 other overseas 
accountancy bodies to be part of a prestigious global network. The Institute also facilitated the placement of students from the 
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CICPA) with CPA firms in Singapore.
 
Besides strategic activities, the Committee also has oversight over operational matters such as the annual budget, internal 
audit, staff salary adjustments and promotion exercise and the award of ICPAS Scholarship to accountancy undergraduates 
from the Nanyang Technological University and the Singapore Management University.

Financial Statements Review Committee
Cheng Ai Phing – Chairperson Lo Wei Min
Ravinthran Arumugam Luar Eng Hwa
Rick Chan Hock Leong Douglas Tan Kay Yeow 
Robin Chin Sin Beng Tan Swee Ho
Chris Choo Chai Leong Tan Tong Kai 
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Choo Eng Beng Teo Chai Choo
Hamish Christie Tham Chee Soon
Goh Swee Hong Tiang Yii
Ho Kok Yong Joseph Toh Kian Leong
Jeremy Hoon Ching Sing Wong Kian Kok 
Michael Kee Cheng Kong Wong-Yeo Siew Eng
Kok Moi Lre  Woo E-Sah
Leong Kok Keong Yeo Boon Chye
Lisa Liew Geok Bee Yeo Ek Khuan
Philip Ling Soon Hwa 
 
During the year, 118 sets of financial statements were distributed for review, including newly-listed public companies and 
a selection of private limited companies. The FSRC’s industry focus for 2009/2010 is shipping and shipbuilding, property 
development, energy, commodities, financial institutions, communications and other services. 

These financial statements were reviewed by members working under the following sub-committees:

Sub-Committee Chairperson Number of Financial Statements 

Published Accounts  Cheng Ai Phing  78 
Private Limited Accounts Goh Swee Hon 40 
  118 

In the course of its reviews, the Committee highlighted to practising members areas where the presentation or content of the 
financial statements fall short of compliance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) and other promulgations. 
Generally the standard of disclosure in the financial statements has improved. However, it was noted that for certain sets of 
financial statements reviewed, a few practising members were found to be not conversant with new and revised FRS and the 
Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSA). These practising members were recommended to attend training courses to update 
themselves on the Standards.

In view of the changes to the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards which are effective for financial periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2009, members are advised to take note of the changes and ensure their compliance in the relevant financial 
statements.

On 15 October 2009, the Committee conducted a half-day seminar on observations compiled from its reviews over the past 
12 months on financial statements for financial periods ended in 2007 and 2008. Certain new and revised Financial Reporting 
Standards (FRS) and IASB’s ED 2009 on Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement were also highlighted during 
this seminar which was attended by over 400 participants from accounting firms, the statutory boards and members from 
various industries.

Information Technology Services Advisory Panel
Tang Kok Kwai – Chairman Themin Suwardy
Lee Jeng Wah –  Deputy Chairman Thio Tse Gan
John Chin Chen Keong Tung Lai Lai
 
Implementation of school management system (SMS)
Work has been in progress for the implementation of a new school management system to support the administration and 
management of operations of Singapore Accountancy Academy. The system is targeted to go live in 3rd quarter of 2010.

Implementation of New Enterprise System (NES)
Existing business processes were reviewed and streamlined with industry best practices incorporated where appropriate. 
Comprising of 3 components – ICPAS Portal, Customer Relationship Management System and Events Management System, 
the NES will integrate seamlessly with the Finance system, enabling ICPAS to monitor trends and analyse information to track 
effectiveness of it’s programmes and services, monitor market share, membership growth and attrition, as well as analyse 
members changing needs and preferences. The system is targeted to go live in 3rd quarter of 2010.

ICPAS Microsites
13 microsites, namely SIATP, Technical, Research, CPE, Events, SMP/SME, Faculty, Ethics, Country Desk, Center for Financial 
Reporting, Corporate Social Responsibility, Assurance Center and Corporate Finance were developed and would be launched 
over 1st quarter and 2nd quarter of 2010.
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Messaging and Collaboration functions
Google applications were adopted in 2nd quarter of 2009 to enhance the operational efficiency as well as foster greater 
collaboration and timely knowledge sharing on messaging and collaboration functions like email, calendaring and file sharing.

Insolvency Practices Committee
Don Ho Mun-Tuke – Chairman Neo Ban Chuan (appointed on 17.11.09)
Tam Chee Chong – Deputy Chairman Seshadri Rajagopalan
Aw Eng Hai  Timothy James Reid   
Peter Chay  Nicky Tan Ng Kuang 
Chee Yoh Chuang Tay Swee Sze
Victor Goh Yeow Kiang 
 
During the year, members continued to emphasise the importance of increasing the awareness of insolvency practitioners 
on training and technical competency. In collaboration with the Singapore Accountancy Academy, Continued Professional 
Education programmes on various subjects in insolvency were conducted.

Several Committee members have actively devoted time and effort in the group discussion with Insolvency & Public Trustees 
Office to give their valuable inputs on the proposed insolvency legislative changes.  

Members also contributed their comments on the proposed Insolvency Practitioners Association of Singapore Code of Ethics 
which was based on the IFAC model.

Insurance Committee
Mak Keat Meng – Chairman Khoo Kah Siang
Sim Hwee Cher – Deputy Chairman Philip Tan Eng Seong 
Paul Faulkner Tom Yee Lat Shing 
Jeremy Hoon Ching Sing Kenny Horlley Young
 

The Committee continues to participate actively and contribute positively to the insurance industry by providing feedback and 
recommendations on various industry matters to insurance bodies and regulators, whilst handling issues raised by members. 

In January 2009, the Committee deliberated and submitted comment letters on the following two Consultation Papers issued 
by the Insurance Supervision Department of the Monetary Authority of Singapore:

• Proposed Revisions to the RBC Risk Requirements on Outstanding Premiums from Brokers,  
 Agents and Other Counter-Parties; and

• Proposed Policy Positions on the Definition of “Singapore Policy” for Policies Purchased by Individuals

The Committee had a dialogue session on 25 September 2009 with the Insurance Supervision Department of the Monetary 
Authority of Singapore on the following agenda items:

• Tax on par fund allocation to policyholders and shareholders 

• Filing of audited Annual Reports

• Special audit reports

• Distribution of MAS Notices/Circulars/Guidelines to ICPAS

• MAS Notice 307 Investment-Linked Life Insurance Policies

Investigation Committee
Gerard Ee Hock Kim – Chairman Ong Sim Ho
Khoo Ho Tong Nagaraj Sivaram
Lee Chow Soon – Lay Person Kelvin Tan Wee Peng
 
During the year, the Committee dealt with three cases against non-practising CPAs. One case was dismissed. Another case 
was referred to the Disciplinary Committee with the recommendation of a suspension until the individual is discharged from 
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a bankruptcy order. A third case was deferred pending determination by the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority 
(ACRA) as to whether the member has breached the Accountants Act.

Management Accounting Committee
R. Dhinakaran – Chairman  Chung Lai Hong
Chan Yoke Kai Keoy Soo Earn
Cheng Wai Fung Eric Low
Michael Chong  V Navaratnam
 

During the year, the Committee deliberated upon and recommended the adoption of the following publications of the Professional 
Accountants in Business (PAIB) Committee of the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC):

(a) Evaluating and Improving Governance in Organisations
This IGPG provides a framework and principles-based guidance for professional accountants in business and their 
organisations on evaluating and improving governance in organisations.

(b) Evaluating and Improving Costing in Organisations
This International Good Practice Guidance (IGPG) establishes six fundamental principles that can help professional 
accountants and their organisations to evaluate and improve their approach to costing.

The Committee noted that as part of ICPAS’ new Strategic Plan, its committees had been streamlined and aligned under 3 
strategic pillars – “Accountancy Excellence”,  “Industry Growth” and “Member and Human Capital Development”, forming the 
acronym AIM.  The Committee had a brainstorming session at its first meeting to deliberate on these and suggested initiatives 
such as possible research projects to drive the AIM strategic thrusts.

The Committee would continue to take an active role in the promulgation of management accounting guidelines in Singapore and 
organise seminars and workshops for the benefit of ICPAS members, especially those pertaining to management accounting.

Membership Committee
Khoo Ho Tong – Chairman Lee Chee Wung
Yeoh Oon Jin – Deputy Chairman Wong Lai Yong
Khoo Teng Aun Yang Ching Chao
 
The Committee had come up with the following initiatives in 2009:

Membership Committee Meeting
The Membership Committee meets up regularly to discuss and document membership matters for Council’s consideration. 
When no meetings are held, agenda papers are circulated monthly to keep all committee members well informed of membership 
matters. 

FCPA Invites
449 members were invited to apply as FCPA Singapore. These are members with at least 10 years of continuous membership 
with ICPAS, holding senior management positions of at least 5 years, and are either from public listed companies, Big 4 or  
mid-tier firms. We have received 162 replies as of 31 December 2009.

Membership by Invitation
The Committee had lent their support to the Institute’s Member Services Division, which proactively engaged and invited 
qualified accountancy professionals from whom the Institute can draw on for their extensive experience in accountancy, their 
valuable contribution in advancing the interests of the profession and their extensive network, so as to further the Institute’s 
strategic thrusts.

Accredited Employer Scheme
To facilitate the ICPAS provisional membership registration and administrative process, the Secretariat of Member Services 
Division has been engaging the Big 4 on a regular basis to facilitate them on membership applications. Through this scheme, 
the accredited employer undertakes the role of a character referee of the provisional membership applicant. With this measure 
and an online submission engine, the provisional membership application process has shortened and is efficient to the Big 4. 
It has reduced the workload on the HR departments of the accredited employers, thus encouraging them to work more closely 
with the Institute. To date, the Big 4 has been supportive of the Institute on this new initiative.
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Online Application Portal
To simplify the administrative processes and to leverage the use of technology, provisional membership application has been 
made available for online submission. This has garnered positive response from applicants as a result of the convenience and 
simple interface of the online application portal.

Pro-Tem Tax Accreditation Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong
Sabina Cheong Khoo Ho Tong
Chia-Tern Huey Min David Lee
Paula Eastwood Latha Mathew
Gerard Ee  Yee Fook Hong
 
The Committee was formed to look into the setup of a professional body to accredit tax professionals in Singapore. The 
Committee agreed on the name, Singapore Institute of Accredited Tax Professionals Limited (“SIATP”), for the new body and 
discussed the following key matters at its meetings held during the year:

• Objectives to be achieved in accrediting tax professionals;

• Constitution & Bye-Laws of SIATP;

• Admission requirements and types of designations for applicants;

• Accreditation framework of SIATP; and

• Business plan and roadmap for the setup and launch of SIATP.

In February 2009, the Committee also held a meeting to engage small and medium sized practitioners in a discussion to 
gather feedback on whether a professional body should be set up to accredit tax professionals and how accreditation could 
be best administered.

The Committee was dissolved upon the incorporation of the Singapore Institute of Accredited Tax Professionals Ltd on 26 
January 2010.

Public Accounting Practice Committee
Lim Boon Cheng – Chairman Lim Yeong Seng
Lee Chee Wung – Deputy Chairman Luar Eng Hwa
Lisa Liew Geok Bee – Deputy Chairperson Philip Siew Tin Gin
Michael Heng Yeow Meng Helen Sim Cheng Geok
Khoo Ho Tong  Clement Tan Kian Leong
Kon Yin Tong Tan Mong Geok
Lim Lian Soon 
 
The Committee considers issues relating to the public accounting arena, and participates in dialogue sessions with the 
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) and other relevant authorities, to promote the interests of the 
practising members.

A Sub-Committee completed the review of the proposed structured audit core training course outlines, from entry-level 
auditors to supervisory-level auditors, for the small and medium practices (“SMPs”). Feedback has been given to the 
Singapore Accountancy Academy and its trainers with the view of developing a uniform and good quality audit core training 
program for the audit staff of the SMPs.
  
During the year, the Committee representatives spoke at various Practice Monitoring Programme (PMP) and CPE workshops.

Singapore Accountancy Academy Advisory Panel
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Loh Hoon Sun
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Deputy Chairman Quek Shi Kui
Chew Tong Gunn Sitoh Yih Pin
Khoo Ho Tong Yang Ching Chao
 
In the year 2009, the advisory panel has adopted a new set of terms of reference to continue to provide guidance and advice in 
relation to the strategy and direction of SAA.
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SAA has once again attained the Singapore Quality Class for Private Education Organisation (SQC-PEO) status and has scored 
well in this assessment year. The good score resulted in the SQC assessor encouraging SAA to work towards the Singapore 
Quality Award (SQA) which is the highest national award for organisations who have achieved the Business Excellence Standard.  

New initiatives such as the development of an online school management system are also in place and work is in progress. The 
school management system will enable the Academy to scale up it operations, increase student support to its growing student 
population and product offerings.  

The Academy reported a positive growth of all the academic programmes as compared to 2008. There is also an increase in 
candidate numbers for the ICPAS Professional Examination. The Business Analytics Reporting (BAR) programme saw a good 
take up rate with all the classes filled each month of 2009. The academy will continue to seek out and introduce new info-comm 
programmes that will meet the needs of our ICPAS members.

Singapore Accountant Editorial Advisory Panel
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman Low Kee Yang
Lee Su Shyan – Deputy Chairperson  Alfred Shee Ping Fatt
(appointed 14.7.09) Sitoh Yih Pin
Tan Hun Tong – Deputy Chairman Tan Boen Eng
Koh Hian Chye Wang Jiwei 
 
Singapore Accountant, the journal of the Institute, continued to keep members abreast of ICPAS news, happenings, developments 
and updates in both the local and international accounting and business arenas. It remained the main communication tool for 
the Institute to reach out to members. 

As part of a constant process to better engage readers, a readership survey was conducted in September to gauge the interests 
of readers. Survey findings were used to evaluate the journal’s existing editorial structure and formulate the plan for the revamp 
of Singapore Accountant.

Based on survey results which showed that readers prefer the journal to be monthly, the frequency of Singapore Accountant was 
increased from once every two months to once a month, effective January 2010. To sharpen the journal’s focus, it was decided 
that the first four pages of the journal would not feature any advertising. Based on survey results, the panel introduced new 
sections to make the journal more relevant to readers and tailor the content to meet their needs. The second phase of the 
revamp of the journal is slated for July 2010. 

From January 2010, new sections in Singapore Accountant include:

In Brief – a one-page summary of key articles in the issue

China Desk – featuring industry news from China, one of the world’s largest economies

ICPAS Research – technical features from ICPAS’ research, technical and practice monitoring divisions

Tips from the Top – a profile of top business leaders, who share their success secrets 

Task Force on ICPAS Diploma in Professional Accounting
Ho Yew Kee – Chairman Tay Guat Peng
Iris Seet Anna Yap
 
The Task Force is responsible for overseeing the development of the ICPAS Diploma in Professional Accounting, including the 
modules, framework and appointment of the module experts. It is also responsible for monitoring and upholding the quality of 
the programme.

During the year, the Task Force spearheaded the development of the new programme and provided a broad outline for the 
syllabus of each unit. The timeline for the programme development was reviewed and approved by the taskforce to ensure a 
smooth delivery of the new programme. 

The Task Force further proposed a strategic name for the new programme which was subsequently approved by the management. 
It further set the selection process and approved 8 syllabus setters for the DPA programme. 
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The Task Force has contributed to the planning of a Focus Group Discussion which has successfully obtained endorsement for 
the DPA programme, created awareness of the DPA programme prior to its launch and provided an estimation of DPA’s future 
market potential.

Task Force on Practice Monitoring Tailored Course
Jeremy Toh Yew Kuan – Chairman Vivienne Chiang Kok Ying
Vincent Chan Weng Sern Derek How Beng Tiong
 
During the year, the Task Force was set up to provide guidance to the development of the course content and training methodology 
of the Practice Monitoring Programme Tailored Course.

Objectives of the Task Force:
1. Identify suitable developers to develop the training materials and course content
2. Review of training syllabus materials
3. Prepare and recommend suitable trainers for the delivery of the programme

Based on the feedback on common findings, the Task Force has recommended the Institute to update the training materials and 
revise the syllabus to ensure relevance.

Task Force on Public Practice Programme
Cheng Ai Phing – Chairperson Lim Boon Cheng
Michael Kee Cheng Kong (appointed 14.7.09) Patricia Tan Mui Siang
Khoo Teng Aun  Joseph Toh Kian Leong 
Lee Chee Wung  Tom Yee Lat Shing  
Lian Wee Cheow 
 
The Task Force, comprising six practising members, one retired Audit Partner and two academicians from the NTU and 
SMU, was tasked to develop a public practice programme suitable for members who aspire to go into public practice. Having 
considered several overseas professional institutes as possible content developers, the Task Force eventually recommended 
to Council to engage the services of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland (ICAS) as the latter has the breadth and 
depth of experience in content development.
 
A curriculum committee comprising Ms Cheng Ai Phing, Mr Michael Kee Cheng Kong, Mr Lim Boon Cheng, Associate Prof Khoo 
Teng Aun and Mr Tom Yee Lat Shing deliberated extensively on the materials developed by ICAS. A sub-team was formed to 
refine and localise the materials to ensure suitability in meeting the local needs. In addition, a team of trainers was identified 
for the launch of the programme. A train-the-trainers session conducted by ICAS was held in the last quarter of the year for a 
group of potential trainers.

The inaugural three-day public practice programme is expected to roll out in the first half of 2010. The programme is designed 
to help participants understand the business considerations, practice management as well as the regulatory and ethical 
environment when running their own practice.

Taxation And Levies Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Co-Chairman Soh Pui Ming
Sum Yee Loong – Co-Chairman Angela Tan
Khoo Ho Tong Tay Hong Beng
Lo Ngai Hung Wong Lai Yong 
Albert Ng Teck Mong Yee Fook Hong
David Jackson Sandison 
 
The Committee continued to deal with the interpretation and practice aspects of tax issues raised by members through its 
meetings held during the year. The Committee also provided its comments on various matters including the consultation 
papers below:

• Public Consultation of The Draft Income Tax (Amendment) Bill 2009 by Ministry of Finance (“MOF”); 

• Public Consultation of Income Tax (Amendment) (Exchange of Information) Bill 2009 by MOF; and
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• Consultation and dialogue sessions on Goods & Services Tax Assisted Compliance Assurance Programme 
 (“ACAP”) with the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore (“IRAS”).

Representatives from the Committee continued to contribute articles to the Taxation column of the Singapore Accountant.  

In March and October 2009, the Committee had its regular dialogue sessions with IRAS to provide feedback on tax issues from 
the perspective of its members. The Committee also submitted its proposals to the MOF for Budget 2010.

Young Professionals Group
Jack Wang Ying Yang – Chairman Eleanor Lee Kim Lin
Michael Heng Yeow Meng Jocelyn Lim Lay Lian
Alex Ho Wah Fong Jonathan Ong Shyue Wen
Frank Khoo Shao Hong Gail Shan Xunan
Lee Boon Teck

The Committee organised and supported the following activities in 2009:

Accountants and Lawyers Night
150 participants attended this event jointly organised by The Young Professionals Group Committee and The Young Lawyers 
Committee of The Law Society at Oosh on 17 July. ICPAS members mingled and networked with the lawyers over a cocktail 
reception. The night also ended with a drinking competition between the accountants and lawyers. This is one of the Committee’s 
efforts to work with other professional groups to give our members more exposure and networking opportunities. Members 
have benefited tremendously from this initiative and it was a full-house event which had been fully registered by our members 
two weeks prior to the actual event. 

Career Talks for Universit ies – Nanyang Technological  University  (NTU) and Singapore Management  
University  (SMU)
The Committee lent their support to the Institute’s Member Services Division, which organised career talks for NTU in September 
and SMU in October. The talks were conducted in a panel discussion/dialogue session with experienced CPAs from different 
industries, accounting firms, commerce and banking sectors to share their career experiences and advise the undergraduates.  
During the panel discussions, the undergraduates posed questions and concerns on stepping into the corporate world.  
Mr Jack Wang was the facilitator and panelist for the NTU career talk. Other panelists included Miss Wan Qian-Wen, Manager, 
Transaction Advisory Services, Ernst & Young Solutions LLP, Miss Allysia Ling, Business Controller, Nokia Pte Ltd and Mr Chris 
Loh, Senior Tax Consultant, Tax Financial Services, PricewaterhouseCoopers Services LLP. Mr Michael Heng was the facilitator 
for the SMU career talk.  Other panelists included Mr Clarence Chai, Assistant Vice President, Global Subsidiaries Group, Global 
Corporate Bank, CitiBank NA, Singapore Branch, Mr Jonathan Ong, Assistant Manager, Financial Advisory Services,  Deloitte 
& Touche LLP, Miss Allysia Ling, Business Controller, Nokia Pte Ltd and Mr Chris Loh, Senior Tax Consultant, Tax Financial 
Services, PricewaterhouseCoopers Services LLP. 

Matching your Personality Traits to your Career Choice
This event was conducted at NTU and SMU in September and adopted the Myers Briggs Type Indicator (MBTI) personality 
inventory to help undergraduates determine their personality type. Through the assessment, they learnt about the different 
personalities required for various career paths in the accountancy industry.  The insights gained would help them to capitalise 
on their strengths and work on their weaknesses in their future career. Ms Jocelyn Lim, member of ICPAS and committee 
member of Young Professionals Group was the speaker for the event.

ICPAS Dinner & Dialogue 
The Committee lent its support to the Dinner & Dialogue held at The Ritz-Carlton on 6 November. ICPAS was honoured to 
have ICPAS Advisor, Mr Teo Ser Luck grace the event. The event kicked off with a welcome address by ICPAS President,  
Dr Kan, who shared on Generation Yers being the future leaders and their diversity in views. Dr Kan highlighted in his speech 
that he believed that many of Young Professionals Group Committee members shared his vision as ICPAS develops into a more 
dynamic organisation. The accountancy profession in Singapore has the potential to further strengthen its capabilities and 
contribute towards the nation’s economic prosperity. Another key highlight of the event was the dialogue session facilitated by 
Channel NewsAsia presenter, Melissa Hyak. It was an engaging discussion on key issues that Generation Y and organisations 
face in harnessing young talents and retention strategies. Mr Teo Ser Luck pointed out that Generation Y are more tech savvy, 
preferring an unconventional approach to life. Generation Y is also intrinsically motivated, working to fulfill goals which are 
aligned with their personal values and value work-life balance.
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On behalf of the Council of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (the “Institute”), we,  
Ernest Kan and Khoo Ho Tong, being the President and Treasurer respectively, do hereby state that in our opinion, the 
consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial statements of the Institute set out on pages 43 to 66 are 
properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 2009 and of its 
results, changes in accumulated and miscellaneous funds and cash flows of the Group and the Institute for the financial 
year ended on that date.

Ernest Kan Khoo Ho Tong
President  Treasurer

Date: 2nd March 2010

Statement by Council
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To members of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (the 
“Institute”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 66, which comprise the balance sheets 
of the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 2009, the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes 
in the accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and statements of cash flows of the Group and the Institute for the year 
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

The Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate 
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from  
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  

Opinion
In our opinion,

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Institute are properly 
drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so 
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Institute at 31 December 2009 and the 
results, changes in accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and cash flows of the Group and the Institute for 
the year ended on that date; and

(b) the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act to be kept by the 
Institute have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations.

Baker Tilly TFWLCL
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

Date: 2nd March 2010
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Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2009

 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

Secretariat
Income for the year    
Members’ annual and admission fees 3,299,400 3,116,973 3,299,400 3,116,973
Other income 1,043,536 855,484 773,991 565,203

Total income 4,342,936 3,972,457 4,073,391 3,682,176
 
Less expenditure    
Finance costs (3,608) (215,106) (3,608) (215,106)
Operating expenses (5,958,384) (5,027,074) (5,912,873) (4,978,707)

Total expenditure (5,961,992) (5,242,180) (5,916,481) (5,193,813)
    
Net deficit from Secretariat (1,619, 056) (1,269,723) (1,843,090) (1,511,637)
    
Singapore Accountancy Academy (SAA)    
Income for the year    
Income from training and other courses 16,258,153 15,254,318 16,258,153 15,254,318
Other income 819,193 663,170 819,193 663,170

Total income 17,077,346 15,917,488 17,077,346 15,917,488
 
Less expenditure    
Finance costs (13,904) (18,167) (13,904) (18,167)
Operating expenses (10,271,788) (8,885,223) (10,271,788) (8,885,223)
Total expenditure (10,285,692) (8,903,390) (10,285,692) (8,903,390)
 
Net surplus from SAA 6,791,654 7,014,098 6,791,654 7,014,098

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Comprehensive Income (cont’d)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2009

 Group Institute
 Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
   $ $ $ $

Combined
Income for the year    
Members’ annual and admission fees 3  3,299,400 3,116,973 3,299,400 3,116,973
Income from training and other courses 4 16,258,153 15,254,318 16,258,153 15,254,318
Other income 5 1,862,729 1,518,654 1,593,184 1,228,373

Total income  21,420,282 19,889,945 21,150,737 19,599,664
     
Less expenditure     
Finance costs 7 (17,512) (233,273) (17,512) (233,273)
Operating expenses  (16,230,172) (13,912,297) (16,184,661) (13,863,930)
  
Net surplus from operating activities  5,172,598 5,744,375 4,948,564 5,502,461
Share of profit of associates (net of tax)  8,452 12,103 – –
  
Net surplus before tax 9 5,181,050 5,756,478 4,948,564 5,502,461
Income tax expense 10 (864,142) (986,340) (846,753) (964,754)
  
Net surplus after income tax   4,316,908 4,770,138 4,101,811 4,537,707
Surplus in miscellaneous fund  6,589 12,048 6,589 12,048
  
     
Total comprehensive income  4,323,497 4,782,186 4,108,400 4,549,755

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



45

Balance Sheets 
At 31 December 2009

 Group Institute
 Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
   $ $ $ $

Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment 8 41,006,655 41,606,502 41,006,655 41,606,502
Associates 11 100,982 92,528 – –
Deferred tax assets 12 34,715 34,715 34,715 34,715
Investment in subsidiaries 19 – – 3 3
  41,142,352 41,733,745 41,041,373 41,641,220

Current assets     
Inventories  15,694 27,215 15,694 27,215
Trade and other receivables 13 1,102,665 703,659 1,187,008 778,445
Fixed deposits 18 4,740,727 3,617,968 3,844,854 2,728,387
Cash and bank balances 18 7,098,320 3,323,442 6,661,926 3,104,968
  12,957,406 7,672,284 11,709,482 6,639,015
  
Total assets  54,099,758 49,406,029 52,750,855 48,280,235
  
Non-current liabilities     
Finance lease liabilities 16 114,186 211,627 114,186 211,627
  
Current liabilities     
Trade and other payables  14 2,854,016 2,543,328 2,842,052 2,529,684
Course fees received in advance  3,620,804 3,547,241 3,620,804 3,547,241
Subscription fees received in advance  1,509,262 772,633 1,381,600 658,858
Bank loans (secured) 15 – 1,000,000 – 1,000,000
Finance lease liabilities 16 97,441 97,207 97,441 97,207
Current tax payable  1,328,497 981,938 1,311,107 960,353
  9,410,020 8,942,347 9,253,004 8,793,343

Total liabilities  9,524,206 9,153,974 9,367,190 9,004,970

Net assets  44,575,552 40,252,055 43,383,665 39,275,265
  
Represented by     
Accumulated fund  44,553,182 40,236,274 43,361,295 39,259,484
Miscellaneous fund 17 22,370 15,781 22,370 15,781
  44,575,552 40,252,055 43,383,665 39,275,265

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Accumulated Fund and 
Miscellaneous Fund
For the financial year ended 31 December 2009
   Accumulated Miscellaneous
 Note  Fund  Fund Total
    $ $ $

Group
Balance at 1 January 2008   35,466,136 3,733 35,469,869
Total comprehensive income   4,770,138 12,048 4,782,186
Balance at 31 December 2008   40,236,274 15,781 40,252,055
Total comprehensive income   4,316,908 6,589 4,323,497

Balance at 31 December 2009   44,553,182 22,370 44,575,552
    
Institute    
Balance at 1 January 2008   34,721,777 3,733 34,725,510
Total comprehensive income   4,537,707 12,048 4,549,755
Balance at 31 December 2008   39,259,484 15,781 39,275,265
Total comprehensive income   4,101,811 6,589 4,108,400

Balance at 31 December 2009   43,361,295 22,370 43,383,665

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2009

 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

Cash flows from operating activities    
Net surplus before tax 5,181,050 5,756,478 4,948,564 5,502,461 
Adjustments for:    
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment 1,088,965 916,012 1,088,965 916,012
Interest on finance leases 16,309 20,572 16,309 20,572 
Loan interest 1,203 212,701 1,203 212,701
Interest income (29,450) (63,670) (24,333) (53,531)
Share of profit of associates (8,454) (12,103) – –
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,379 – 1,379 –
Property, plant and equipment written off – 7,436 – 7,436
Operating surplus before working capital changes 6,251,002 6,837,426 6,032,087 6,605,651

Inventory 11,521 8,994 11,521 8,994
Receivables (399,925) (108,875) (408,308) (76,466)
Subscription fees received in advance 736,629 151,762 722,742 123,057
Payables 313,371 562,977 315,051 562,745
Course fees received in advance 73,563 538,027 73,563 538,027
Miscellaneous fund 6,589 12,048 6,589 12,048
Cash generated from operations 6,992,750 8,002,359 6,753,245 7,774,056
Income tax paid (517,584) (821,755) (495,998) (808,638)
Net cash from operating activities 6,475,166 7,180,604 6,257,247 6,965,418

Cash flows from investing activities     
Interest received 30,371 65,980 24,078 54,315
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (495,037) (968,630) (495,037) (968,630)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment 4,540 192,346 4,540 192,346 
Net cash used in investing activities (460,126) (710,304) (466,419) (721,969)

Cash flows from financing activities     
Interest paid on finance leases (16,309) (20,572) (16,309) (20,572)
Loan interest paid (3,887) (233,826) (3,887) (233,826)
Repayment of principal loan (1,000,000) (5,444,444) (1,000,000) (5,444,444)
Repayment of finance lease liabilities (97,207) (284,851) (97,207) (284,851)
 
Net cash used in financing activities (1,117,403) (5,983,693) (1,117,403) (5,983,693)
   
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,897,637 486,607 4,673,425 259,756
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,941,410 6,454,803 5,833,355 5,573,599 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 18) 11,839,047 6,941,410 10,506,780 5,833,355

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2009

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1 Corporate information

 The Institute (ROS Ref No. 0137/2004) is the national organisation of the accountancy profession in Singapore.  
It was established in June 1963 as the Singapore Society of Accountants (SSA) under the SSA Ordinance 1963, 
then reconstituted and renamed the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) on 11 February 
1989 under the Accountants Act 1987. As of 1 April 2004, ICPAS is reconstituted as a society under the Societies 
Act. The restructuring is primarily a change of form for the Institute as ICPAS continues to be the national body 
for the accountancy profession in Singapore and its functions remain unchanged. The registered office of the 
Institute is located at 20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House, Singapore 389805.

 The principal activities of the Institute are those of administering the Institute’s membership, catering for the 
training and professional development of its members.

 The consolidated financial statements relate to the Institute and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the 
Group) and the Group’s interests in associates.

2 Significant accounting policies

 a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Societies Act and 
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 

The financial statements, which are presented in Singapore dollars, have been prepared on historical cost 
basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the Institute and are consistent 
with those used in the previous financial year.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use of estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of profit or loss during the 
financial year. Although these estimates are based on the Council’s best knowledge of current events and 
actions and historical experiences and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher 
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements are disclosed in Note 2(o).

In the current financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised FRS and Interpretations of FRS 
(“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current financial year.
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 a) Basis of preparation (cont’d)
The adoption of these new/revised FRSs has no material effect on the financial statements except for the 
adoption of the following new or revised FRS which is relevant to the Group: 

FRS 1 (revised) Presentation of financial statements
The revised FRS 1 requires an entity to present, in a statement of changes in equity, all owner changes 
in equity. All non-owner changes in equity (ie comprehensive income) are required to be presented in one 
statement of comprehensive income or in two statements (a separate income statement and a statement 
of comprehensive income). Components of comprehensive income are not permitted to be presented in the 
statement of changes in equity. The Group has chosen to present one statement of comprehensive income.

The Group has not applied the following new/revised FRS or interpretations that have been issued as of the 
balance sheet date but are not yet effective: 

FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
FRS 103 Business Combinations
INT FRS 117 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
INT FRS 118 Transfers of Assets from Customers
Amendments to FRS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
Amendments to FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
 – Eligible Hedged Items
Amendments to FRS 101 Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 102 Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to FRS 105 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Improvements to FRSs 2009

The initial application of these standards and interpretations, where applicable, are not expected to have 
any material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

 b) Consolidation

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies 
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in 
the consolidated financial statements from the date of the control commences until the date that control 
ceases. Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial 
statements.

Associates
Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over their financial 
and operating policies. The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method.  
The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss of the associates from 
the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the 
Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest (including 
any long-term investments) is reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except 
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

Accounting for subsidiaries and associates by the Institute
In the Institute’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at 
cost less impairment losses.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 c) Functional and foreign currencies
Functional currency
Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency that best reflects 
the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Institute and its 
subsidiaries (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore 
dollars, which is the functional currency of the Institute and its subsidiaries.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate in 
effect at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at the balance sheet date are translated into the functional currency at the rates ruling at that date. All 
exchange differences are taken to profit or loss.

 d) Inventories
Inventories, comprising accounting books and manuals, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

 e) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and costs of bringing 
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are 
included as part of the cost of asset if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration costs is 
incurred as a consequence of acquiring or using the asset. Expenditure for additions, improvements and 
renewals are capitalised and expenditure for maintenance and repairs are charged to profit or loss. The 
cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the 
Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost 
less residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings 50 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 10 years
Computers 3 to 4 years
Renovation 3 to 5 years

Freehold land and renovation-in-progress are not depreciated.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each 
financial year-end.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is 
included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 f) Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that 
generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.  

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell 
and its value in use. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that 
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in 
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation, if no impairment loss has been recognised. Reversal of impairment loss is recorded 
in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate 
the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining  
useful life.

 g)  Financial assets
i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets according to the purpose for which the assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates 
this designation at every reporting date. The Group’s only financial assets are loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except those maturing later 
than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets.  Loans and 
receivables are presented as “trade and other receivables”, “fixed deposits” and “cash and bank 
balance” on the balance sheet.

ii) Recognition and derecognition
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date – the date on which 
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group 
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On disposal of a financial asset, the 
difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. Any 
amount in the fair value reserve relating to that asset is also transferred to profit or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 g)  Financial assets (cont’d)

iii) Initial measurement
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss, which are recognised at fair value. Transaction costs for financial 
assets at fair value through profit and loss are recognised as expenses.

iv) Subsequent measurement

 Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 Interest income on financial assets are recognised separately in profit or loss.

v) Impairment
 The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Loans and receivables
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or 
financial reorganisation, and default or delinguency in payments are considered indicators that the 
receivable is impaired.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment allowance account, 
and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. The allowance amount is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted 
at the original effective interest rate. When the asset becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the 
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised against 
the same line item in profit or loss.

 h)  Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include trade payables, other amounts payable and interest-bearing loans. Financial 
liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair 
value of consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the 
amortisation process. The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged 
or cancelled or expired.

 i) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as a 
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of the provision is the present value of the 
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 j) Leases
Finance leases
Leases of assets in which the Group assumes substantially the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 
as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired through finance leases are capitalised at the 
inception of the lease at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.   
Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy 
applicable to that asset. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the 
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 
charges are charged to profit or loss.

Operating leases
Leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the 
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) are taken to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to 
be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination  
takes place.

 k) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured.

Members’ annual and admission fees, students’ fees and students’ administration fees and CATS & ATTS 
fees are recognised when due.

Course fees (from continuing professional education and training) are recognised when the services are 
rendered.

Advertising income is recognised when advertisement is placed.

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues based on effective interest rate method unless 
collectibility is in doubt.

Sundry income, includes sale of Members’ Handbooks, which are recognised when the goods sold are 
delivered and subvention fees which are recognised when received for the current financial year.

 l) Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset,  
the fair value is recognised as deferred capital grant on the balance sheet and is amortised to profit or loss 
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to 
match them on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 m) Employee benefits
Pension obligations
As required by law, the Group makes contributions to the state pension scheme, the Central Provident 
Fund (CPF) Scheme which is a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to CPF are recognised 
as expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. The estimated 
liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. 

 n) Income tax
Income tax for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in profit or 
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised 
in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of  
previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet method, providing for all temporary differences at 
the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the 
financial statements. Deferred tax is not recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that 
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when 
they reverse, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will  
be realised.

 o) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The cost of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis  over their respective 
useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment to be 
within 3 to 50 years. The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 
December 2009 was $39,294,339 (2008 : $39,728,474). Changes in the expected level of usage and 
technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these 
assets. Therefore future depreciation charges could be revised and impact the profit in future years. 
 

b) Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies
There are no significant judgements made in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 Members’ annual and admission fees
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Members annual fees 2,901,900 2,772,763 2,901,900 2,772,763
 Members admission fees 397,500 344,210 397,500 344,210
  3,299,400 3,116,973 3,299,400 3,116,973

4 Income from training and other courses
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Income from CPE 1,603,172 1,806,922 1,603,172 1,806,922
 Income from other training courses 14,654,981 13,447,396 14,654,981 13,447,396
  16,258,153 15,254,318 16,258,153 15,254,318

5 Other income
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Registration and subscription fees 458,973 461,213 – –
 Interest income from bank deposits and
 bank balances 29,450 63,670 24,333 53,531
 Management fee charged to subsidiaries
 and associates 6,800 6,800 193,300 172,800
 Practice Monitoring income 169,500 90,000 169,500 90,000
 Government grant - jobs credit scheme 323,677 – 323,677 –
 Seminar and talk fees 184,525 109,237 184,525 109,237
 Sundry income 689,804 787,734 697,849 802,805
  1,862,729 1,518,654 1,593,184 1,228,373

6 Staff costs  
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Salaries and bonuses 5,487,262 4,245,015 5,487,262 4,245,015
 CPF 638,801 477,522 638,801 477,522
 Employee benefit expenses 222,879 154,875 222,879 154,875
  6,348,942 4,877,412 6,348,942 4,877,412

7 Finance costs 
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Interest on finance lease 16,309 20,572 16,309 20,572
 Interest on loan 1,203 212,701 1,203 212,701
  17,512 233,273 17,512 233,273
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8 Property, plant and equipment
 Group & Institute
   Furniture
 Freehold Freehold & Office
 Land Buildings Equipment Computers Renovation* Total
 $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost       
Balance as at 1 January 2008 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,693,666 1,083,080 669,797 45,329,307 
Additions – – 430,025 161,130 702,275 1,293,430
Disposals – – (412,170) – – (412,170)
Written off – – (347,562) (6,274) (1,500) (355,336)
     
Balance as at 31 December 2008 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,363,959 1,237,936 1,370,572 45,855,231
Additions – – 60,669 375,056 116,236 551,961
Disposals – – (29,168) (78,985) – (108,153)
Reclassifications – – 315,480 14,000 (386,404) (56,924)
Balance as at 31 December 2009 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,710,940 1,548,007 1,100,404 46,242,115

Accumulated depreciation       
Balance as at 1 January 2008 – 1,720,154 961,821 793,409 425,057 3,900,441
Depreciation charge for the year
 (Note 9) – 434,136 247,897 167,478 66,501 916,012
Disposals – – (219,824) – – (219,824)
Written off – – (340,126) (6,274) (1,500) (347,900)

Balance as at 31 December 2008 – 2,154,290 649,768 954,613 490,058 4,248,729
Depreciation charge for the year
 (Note 9) – 434,135 285,031 238,433 131,366 1,088,965
Disposals – – (23,250) (78,984) – (102,234)
Balance as at 31 December 2009 – 2,588,425 911,549 1,114,062 621,424 5,235,460 
 
Carrying Amount
Balance as at 31 December 2008 20,176,000 19,552,474 714,191 283,323 880,514 41,606,502 
Balance as at 31 December 2009 20,176,000 19,118,339 799,391 433,945 478,980 41,006,655

*Renovation includes renovation-in-progress of #12 KH Plaza Aljunied, amounting to $Nil (2008 :  $668,542 ).
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8 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

In accordance with the Constitution of the Institute, the freehold land and freehold buildings were transferred to 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore Pte Ltd which holds the freehold land and freehold buildings 
in trust for the Institute.

  Location
 Freehold properties i) CPA House
   20 Aljunied Road
   Singapore 389805
   Consisting of 5 floors
   (Units #01-01, #01-03, #01-04, #01-05, #01-06, 
   #02-01, #02-02, #04-01, #04-02, #05-01, #05-02, 
   #06-01 and #06-02) and totalling 2,779 sq. meters
 
  ii) 6 Raffles Quay
   #23-00 
   Singapore 048580

 Assets held under finance leases
During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of $Nil (2008 : $324,800) 
under finance leases. The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases as at 31 
December 2009 was $196,382 (2008 : $295,980). Leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease 
liabilities (Note 16).

 Assets pledged as security
In 2008, one of the freehold properties with a carrying amount of $14,416,562 was pledged as security to secure a 
mortgage loan from a bank. The loan had been repaid fully during the year and the mortgage had been discharged 
(Note 15). 
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9  Net surplus before tax is arrived at after charging the following:
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Depreciation for property plant and equipment (Note 8) 1,088,965 916,012 1,088,965 916,012
 Direct cost of providing training and other courses 4,104,371 3,700,529 4,086,863 3,700,529
 Foreign exchange gain 80 – 80 –
 Gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,378 7,436 1,378 7,436
 Impairment loss on trade receivables 8,563 19,373 8,563 19,373
 Rental expenses 552,151 162,143 552,151 162,143
 Staff costs (Note 6) 6,348,942 4,877,412 6,348,942 4,877,412

10 Income tax expense
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Current tax  834,732 1,061,794 817,343 1,040,208 
 Under/(over) provision in prior year 29,410 55,560 29,410 55,560 
  864,142 1,117,354 846,753 1,095,768

 Current deferred tax – 4,313 – 4,313 
 Overprovision of deferred tax liabilities in prior year – (96,300) – (96,300)
 Underprovision of deferred tax assets in prior year – (39,027) – (39,027)
  – (131,014) – (131,014)
Total 864,142 986,340 846,753 964,754

The income tax expense on the results of the financial year varies from the amount of income tax determined by applying 
the Singapore statutory rate of income tax to total surplus before tax due to the following factors :

 $ $ $ $

 Net surplus before tax 5,181,050 5,756,478 4,948,564 5,502,461 
 
 Tax calculated at a tax rate of 17% (2008 : 18%) 880,779 1,036,166 841,256 990,443 
 Singapore statutory stepped income exemption (44,254) (49,935) (25,925) (27,450)
 Income not subject to tax (55,025) – (55,025) –
 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 99,900 81,528 99,900 81,528
 Under/(over) provision of income tax in prior year 29,410 55,560 29,410 55,560 
 Overprovision of deferred tax liabilities in prior year – (96,300) – (96,300)
 Underprovision of deferred tax assets in prior year – (39,027) – (39,027)
 Deferred tax assets not recognised (29,199) – (29,199) –
 Others (17,469) (1,652) (13,664) –
  864,142 986,340 846,753 964,754
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11 Associates
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Investment in associates 100,982 92,528 –* –*

 Details of associates are as follows:
  Effective interest held
  by the Group
 Name Country of incorporation 2009 2008
  % %

 Insolvency Practitioners Association of Singapore Limited Singapore 50 50
 Singapore Institute of Taxation Limited Singapore 33 33

*There is no cost of investment as the associates are companies limited by guarantee whereby every member of the 
company undertakes to contribute to meet the debts and liabilities of the company in the event of its liquidation to 
an amount not exceeding $10.

The summarised financial information of the associates are as follows:
   2009 2008
  $ $

 Assets and liabilities
 Current assets  240,778 212,690
 
 Current liabilities  18,812 6,684 
 
 Results   
 Revenue  33,604 51,615 
 
 Profit after taxation  15,960 28,015 
 

During the financial year, the Institute has the following transaction with an associate on the terms agreed between 
the parties :

  $ $

 Management fee income  6,800 6,800
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12 Deferred tax assets
  Group & Institute
   2009 2008
  $ $

 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises tax effect of
 temporary differences arising from :

 Accelerated tax depreciation   (87,590) (87,590)
 Provision for bonus   86,400 86,400
 Provision for unutilised annual leave   35,905 35,905
    34,715 34,715
 
 Representing :  
 Deferred tax assets   122,305 122,305
 Deferred tax liabilities   (87,590) (87,590)
    34,715 34,715

13 Trade and other receivables
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Trade receivables 466,671 330,412 466,671 330,412 
 Amount due from (trade)     
 - subsidiaries – – 85,739 77,356 
 - associate 6,089 1,099 6,089 1,099 
 Accrued practice review fee 
 receivable 96,000 40,500 96,000 40,500 
 Deposits 181,220 173,046 181,220 173,046 
 Interest receivable 2,501 3,420 1,105 850 
 Others 53,046 27,805 53,046 26,805 
 Prepayments 297,138 127,377 297,138 128,377 
  1,102,665 703,659 1,187,008 778,445

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on immediate to about 6 months’ terms.

14 Trade and other payables
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Trade payables 893,278 720,800 893,278 720,800
 Other payables 448,948 588,940 448,948 588,940
 Accrued operating expenses 1,511,790 1,233,588 1,499,826 1,219,944
  2,854,016 2,543,328 2,842,052 2,529,684

 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day term.

15 Bank loans

 The bank loan of $1,000,000 in 2008 was secured by a mortgage over a freehold property (Note 8) and borne interest 
 at 1% over the bank’s prevailing cost of funds per annum. The loan had been fully repaid during 2009.
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16 Finance lease liabilities
 Group & Institute
 Minimum lease Present value
 payments of payments
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Within one year 108,155 113,516 97,441 97,207
 After one year but not more than five years 120,123 228,278 114,186 211,627
 Total minimum lease payments 228,278 341,794 211,627 308,834
 Less: Finance charges (16,651) (32,960) – –
 Present value of minimum lease payments 211,627 308,834 211,627 308,834

These finance lease liabilities are secured by a charge over leased assets (Note 8).

At the expiration of the finance lease agreements, the Institute has the option to purchase the assets for $10,257  
(2008 : $13,157).  In the event that the option is not exercised, the lessor has the right to sell the assets to a third 
party and the Institute has undertaken to indemnify the lessor for the difference if the selling price is lower than the 
residual value of $10,257 (2008 : $13,157). The effective rate of interest is approximately 3.8% to 6.3% (2008: 3.8% to 
6.8% per annum).

17 Miscellaneous fund
 Community Service Project Fund

The fund is made up of donations from members, money from fund-raising projects and contributions from the 
Institute.  It is used for the Institute’s community service projects.  It is made up as follows:

  Group & Institute
   2009 2008
  $ $

 Balance at beginning of year  15,781 3,733
 Add: Donations from members  25,020 21,569
 Less: Community service projects funded during the year  (18,431) (9,521)
 Net surplus for the year  6,589 12,048
 Balance at end of year  22,370 15,781

18 Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and fixed deposits 
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

 Fixed deposits 4,740,727 3,617,968 3,844,854 2,728,387 
 Cash and bank balances 7,098,320 3,323,442 6,661,926 3,104,968 
  11,839,047 6,941,410 10,506,780 5,833,355 
 

Fixed deposits are placed for varying periods of between 1 to 12 months depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of the Group and the Institute and earn interest of 0.25% to 1.70%   (2008 : 0.5%  to 2.06%) per annum.
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19 Subsidiaries and intra-group transactions

Association of Taxation Technicians (S) Limited (“ATTS”), Certified Accounting Technicians (Singapore) Ltd (“CATS”) 
and Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore Pte Ltd (“ICPAS PL”), which are all incorporated in 
Singapore, are deemed to be wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Institute as Council Members of the Institute directly 
control ATTS, CATS and ICPAS PL.

During the financial year, the Institute has the following significant transactions with the subsidiaries on terms 
agreed between the parties:

   2009 2008
  $ $

 Subscription of journals  14,689 15,071
 Management fee income  186,000 166,000

20 Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation comprised:

  Group & Institute
   2009 2008
  $ $

 Short-term employee benefits  1,144,905 900,260
 Post-employment benefits  84,798 61,052
   1,229,703 961,312

21 Commitments
(i) Capital commitments
 Capital expenditure contracted for as at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial statements 

is as follows:

  Group & Institute
   2009 2008
  $ $

 Capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment 704,050 229,509
 

(ii) Operating lease commitments
The Group leases an office under non-cancellable operating lease agreement.  
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease as at balance sheet date are as follows:

  Group & Institute
   2009 2008
  $ $

 Within one year  464,213 458,537
 After one year but within five years  881,431 1,286,164

During 2008, the Institute entered into a lease agreement for the use of property at No. 12 Aljunied Road, #03 and 
#04 KH Plaza, Aljunied, Singapore, for a fixed monthly rental for a term of 4 years. 
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22 Financial instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

Financial assets    
Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash equivalents) 12,644,574 7,517,692 11,396,650 6,483,423
  
Financial liabilities    
Amortised cost 2,803,804 3,652,689 2,791,840 3,639,045

(b) Financial risk management
 The main risks arising from the Group’s financial management are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk 

and foreign currency risk. The Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are 
summarised below:

 Interest rate risk
 The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing loan and 

fixed deposits. The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt. 
The sensitivity analysis for changes in interest rate is not disclosed as the effect on profit or loss is considered  
not significant.

 Credit risk
 The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to settle its financial 

and contractual obligations to the Group, as and when they fall due. The Group manages this risk by monitoring 
credit ratings and limiting the aggregate financial exposure to any individual counterparty.

 The Group places its cash and fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions which are regulated.

 The credit risk is as follows :

i) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
 Bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks with high credit-ratings 

assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are 
substantially companies with a good collection track record with the Group.

ii) Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
 There is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for trade receivables.

 The age analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is as follows :
 Group Institute
 2009 2008 2009 2008
 $ $ $ $

Past due 0 to 3 months 120,070 152,632 120,070 152,632
Past due 3 to 6 months 135,976 168,301 135,976 168,301
Past due over 6 months 210,625 9,479 210,625 9,479
 466,671 330,412 466,671 330,412
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22 Financial instruments (cont’d)

b) Financial risk management (cont’d)
 Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances deemed 
adequate by the Management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in 
cash flows.

 The Group targets for available funds in the form of surplus liquidity and aims at maintaining flexibility in funding 
by keeping committed and uncommitted credit lines available.

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Group’s and Institute’s financial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted cash flows.  

 Less than Between Between Over
  1 year 1 & 2 years 2 & 5 years 5 years
 $ $ $ $

Group
At 31 December 2009
Trade and other payables 2,854,016 – – –
Finance lease 108,155 120,123 – –
 
At 31 December 2008    
Trade and other payables 2,543,328 – – –
Finance lease 113,516 228,278 – –
Borrowings 1,000,000 – – –

Institute
At 31 December 2009
Trade and other payables 2,842,052 – – –
Finance lease 108,155 120,123 – –

At 31 December 2008    
Trade and other payables 2,529,684 – – –
Finance lease 113,516 228,278 – –
Borrowings 1,000,000 – – –

 Foreign currency risk
The Group’s foreign currency risk results mainly from cash flows and transactions denominated in foreign 
currencies. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative forward foreign exchange contracts for hedging 
and speculative purposes.

 The Group has no significant exposure in respect of financial assets and liabilities held in foreign currency.

c) Fair value
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including trade and 
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables) are assumed to approximate their 
fair values because of the short period to maturity.
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23 Fund management

The Institute’s objectives when managing its funds are to safeguard its ability to maintain adequate working capital 
to continue as going concern, to promote its objective to lead, develop and support accountancy professionals in 
Singapore and  uphold the public interest.

24 Comparative information

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the comparative information to ensure compliance with the revised  
FRS 1. These reclassifications are to reflect the statements of comprehensive income by nature and to reflect the 
gross income and expense of the Academy on the face of the statements of comprehensive income instead of in the 
note to the financial statements. These reclassifications do not have any impact on the results, accumulated fund 
and miscellaneous fund. The following reclassifications were made:

(i) Statements of Comprehensive Income 
  As  
  previously Amount As
  reported reclassified reclassified
  $ $ $

Combined
Institute
Income for the year
Members’ annual and admission fees  3,116,973 – 3,116,973 
Income from training and other courses  – 15,254,318 15,254,318 
Other income  464,171 764,202 1,228,373 

Total income  3,581,144 16,018,520 19,599,664 
    
Less  expenditure    
Finance costs  – (233,273) (233,273)
Operating expenses  – (13,863,930) (13,863,930)
Administrative expenses  (5,092,781) 5,092,781 – 
  
Net surplus from the Academy  7,014,098 (7,014,098) – 
  
Net surplus from operating activities  5,502,461 – 5,502,461
    
Net surplus before tax  5,502,461 – 5,502,461 
Income tax expense  (964,754) – (964,754)
  
Net surplus after income tax  4,537,707 – 4,537,707
Surplus in miscellaneous fund  – 12,048 12,048 
 
Total comprehensive income  4,537,707 12,048 4,549,755
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24 Comparative information (cont’d)

Reclassifications (cont’d)

(i) Statements of Comprehensive Income (cont’d)
  As  
  previously Amount As
  reported reclassified reclassified
  $ $ $

Group
Income for the year
Members’ annual and admission fees  3,116,973 – 3,116,973
Income from training and other courses  – 15,254,318 15,254,318
Other income  754,452 764,202 1,518,654

Total income  3,871,425 16,018,520 19,889,945
   
Less expenditure   
Finance costs  – (233,273) (233,273)
Operating expenses  – (13,912,297) (13,912,297)
Administrative expenses  (5,141,148) 5,141,148 –

Net surplus from the Academy  7,014,098 (7,014,098) –
Net surplus from operating activities  5,744,375 – 5,744,375
Share of profit of associates (net of tax)  12,103 – 12,103
 
Net surplus before tax  5,756,478 – 5,756,478
Income tax expense  (986,340) – (986,340)

Net surplus after income tax   4,770,138 – 4,770,138
Surplus in miscellaneous fund  – 12,048 12,048
 
Total comprehensive income  4,770,138 12,048 4,782,186

25 Subsequent event
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Institute incorporated two subsidiaries, SAA Global Education Pte Ltd 
and Singapore Institute of Accredited Tax Professionals Ltd.

26 Authorisation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Group and Institute for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 were authorised 
for issue by the Council on Date : 2nd March 2010.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice	 is	hereby	given	 that	 in	accordance	with	Article	67	of	 the	Constitution	of	 the	 Institute,	 the	
Annual	 General	 Meeting	 2009/2010	 of	 the	 Institute	 of	 Certified	 Public	 Accountants	 of	 Singapore	
will	be	held	on	Saturday,	17	April	2010	at	2.00	pm,	at	Marina	Mandarin,	Marina	Mandarin	Ballroom,	
Level	1,	6	Raffles	Boulevard,	Marina	Square,	Singapore	039594.

Agenda

1	 President’s	address.

2	 To	confirm	the	minutes	of	the	Annual	General	Meeting	2008/2009	of	members	held	on	18	
April	2009.

3	 To	receive	the	Report	of	the	Council	for	the	year	2009/2010	and	Accounts	of	the	Institute	for	
the	year	ended	31	December	2009.

4	 To	elect	eight	members	to	the	Council	as	follows:

	 (a)	 Practising	members	–	four	to	hold	office	for	a	term	of	two	years;

	 (b)	 Non-Practising	members	–	four	to	hold	office	for	a	term	of	two	years.

	 The	following	members	of	the	Council	retire	in	accordance	with	the	provisions	of	Articles	38	
to	40	of	the	Constitution:

Practising	Members	 Non-Practising	Members
Ernest	Kan	Yaw	Kiong	 Gerard	Ee	Hock	Kim
Khoo	Ho	Tong	 Loh	Hoon	Sun
Lim	Boon	Cheng	 Pang	Yang	Hoong	
Yeoh	Oon	Jin	 Frances	Wong	Lai	Yong

	 Nominations	have	been	received	for	the	following:

Practising	Members	 Nominated	by
Ernest	Kan	Yaw	Kiong	 Don	Ho	Mun-Tuke
Khoo	Ho	Tong	 Kon	Yin	Tong
Lim	Boon	Cheng	 Phan	Swee	Kim
Yeoh	Oon	Jin	 Sitoh	Yih	Pin
	 Yip	Yan	Hoi
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Non-Practising	Members	 Nominated	by
Gerard	Ee	Hock	Kim	 Loh	Hoon	Sun
Jeann	Low	Ngiap	Jong	 Quek	Shi	Kui
Frances	Wong	Lai	Yong	 Tan	Boen	Eng
	 Yee	Lat	Shing
	 Yim	Kam	May

Ramasamy	Dhinakaran	 Loh	Hoon	Sun
	 Tan	Boen	Eng
	 Tang	Kok	Kwai
	 Yee	Lat	Shing
	 Yim	Kam	May

	 By	order	of	the	Council

	 Janet	Tan
	 Secretary
	 23	March	2010
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MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING 2008/2009
Date: Saturday, 18 April 2009
Time: 2:12pm
Venue: Marina Mandarin Ballroom
 
Total number of members present
Practising members:   72
Non-Practising members: 368
Provisional members:   38
 478

Chairman and President: Mr Tan Boen Eng
Secretary: Ms Janet Tan

1.  NOTICE OF MEETING
The notice of meeting, having been circulated to members before the meeting, was taken as read.

2.  PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS 
The Chairman welcomed all members present at the Institute’s Annual General Meeting. He went on to inform members of the 
progress ICPAS made in 2008.

Membership continued to grow healthily. The Institute’s membership crossed the 20,000th mark and the current membership 
is now 20,565.

To cater to the growing pool of students, the Institute’s training arm, Singapore Accountancy Academy, expanded its main 
campus at Aljunied Road by 13,000 square feet, through the rental of additional office space at the adjacent building, KH Plaza. 
This expansion increased its total campus floor space by 30 per cent. 
 
Given the current economic situation and the better than expected surpluses, ICPAS was rolling out its CPE Training Assistance 
Package to give back to members in the form of CPE training credits for 2009. The Institute would be giving back as much as 50 
percent of the membership fees, based on a dollar for dollar claim. If all members were to fully ultilise the credits, this move 
could potentially cost the Institute approximately S$1.45 million in total. ICPAS hoped this would help in defraying the cost of 
training for members.

The Chairman highlighted that a key development in the industry is the formation of the Committee to Develop the Accountancy 
Sector by the Ministry of Finance. The Committee has been established to embark on a fundamental review of the accountancy 
sector, with the objective to positioning Singapore as a premier global hub in Asia for accountancy services and professionals. 
He indicated that ICPAS was privileged to be able to work closely with the Committee in developing the profession.

The Chairman also shared that the strategic planning exercise ICPAS embarked on in the last quarter of 2008 was completed 
and members had witnessed the launch just before the AGM proceedings. The new strategic plan is a statement of ICPAS’ 
approach to fulfilling its role as the national accountancy body. It demonstrated its commitment to lead ICPAS and accountants 
into the next decade as a stronger Institute with thriving professionals. He urged members to step forward and be a part of the 
exciting journey to help realise the plans and bring the profession forward.

The Chairman informed that this AGM would be his final one as President. He would be stepping down and passing on the baton 
after the meeting. He expressed his appreciation to members for the trust placed in him to serve as President in the past 14 
years. He also thanked the Council, Committee members and staff for their support.
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3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2007/2008 

3.1 The minutes of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2007/2008 held on 19 April 2008, having been circulated to 
all members, were taken as read.

3.2 On the proposal of Mr Gerard Ee and seconded by Mr Don Ho, the minutes of the AGM 2007/2008 were approved.

3.3 The Chairman then polled the members present on the confirmation of the minutes. From the poll results, the 
Chairman declared that the minutes had been confirmed.

4.  ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2008/2009

4.1 The Chairman referred the members to the Annual Report (report) of the Council for the year 2008/2009 
and the Accounts for the Institute for the year ended 31 December 2008 and invited comments from the 
members present.

4.2 Mr Andrew Kuan referred to item 4.2 on page 7 of the report. He applauded Mr Dhinakaran for raising 
the issue on financial prudency at the last AGM as he noted that the bank loan has been reduced by $6 million  
(as shown in the balance sheet on page 55). This has helped the Institute to increase its asset value.  
He sought clarification on item 4.2.4 of the 2007/2008 AGM minutes where ICPAS mentioned that it was unable 
to pay off the loan early as a penalty would be incurred. As reflected on page 66 of the report, interest on the loan 
was $212,701. He asked if the amount  included the penalty incurred.

 Treasurer, Mr Khoo Ho Tong replied that ICPAS did not pay any penalty. The amount was purely the interest incurred 
from the loan. The Institute had fully paid off the loan as at April 2009 without incurring any penalty.

 Vice-President, Dr Ernest Kan added that it did not mean the Institute paid a penalty. It simply meant that if ICPAS 
were to redeem the loan earlier than the stipulated period, a penalty would be incurred.

4.2.1 Mr Kuan also asked how much the IT infrastructure cost was (ref. item 4.2.2 on page 7).

 Treasurer said the Institute had budgeted S$1.6 million to change the entire IT infrastructure, including hardware as 
well as software development.

 Vice-President added that investing in IT was necessary for the Institute to boost its infrastructure capabilities to 
carry out its strategic plans.

 
4.2.2 Mr Kuan then asked about the jump in legal and professional fees incurred, i.e. from S$38,655 in 2007 to S$98,078 

in 2008. (ref. page 66).
 
 Treasurer replied that these were mainly professional fees spent in hiring the strategic consultant.

4.3 Mr Tan See Peng noted that the website income has increased from S$8,175 to S$9,710 (ref. page 67), although not 
significantly. He commented that the Institute was moving in the right direction and hoped ICPAS could continue to 
better tap on the website advertisements as an income stream.

4.3.1 Mr Tan queried about the practice monitoring division that is incurring losses. Since this was for Practising members, 
he suggested reporting this under a different category from that for Non-Practising members. The same treatment 
should be applied for all the other expenses incurred, i.e. to split under Practising and Non-Practising members. 
This would help to justify the membership fees charged to both Practising and Non-Practising members. Mr Tan also 
pointed out that the term “Non-Practising member” was a misnomer and requested the Institute to change it to a 
more appropriate term. 

 Vice-President responded that the way ICPAS’ accounts was presented was way above the disclosures required by 
the financial reporting standards. The Institute wants to be transparent and tries to disclose as much information as 
possible. As for practice monitoring, ICPAS did not take the collaboration it had with ACRA lightly. It was a mandate 
from ACRA, with which ICPAS as the national accountancy body is assisting. ICPAS has decided to disclose this as 
well so as to be consistent in its transparency practice.
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4.3.2 Mr Tan asked about the liability that ICPAS was exposed to as mentioned under “Contingent liabilities” (ref. page 80).

 Treasurer responded that the Institute’s potential liability was up to S$20,000 in view of insurance coverage.

4.3.3 Mr Tan then highlighted that the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) had recently announced it was going to 
have a consultation paper on unlisted investments. He wanted to know the Institute’s reaction towards this and if it 
planned to invite feedback from members.

 Vice-President answered that ICPAS took great interest in this and would respond to the consultation paper. This 
would be done through the respective Committees at ICPAS. The feedback gathered would then be approved by the 
Council before it was sent to MAS.

4.3.4 Ms Ruth Teoh acknowledged that the Institute was doing well, earning a profit of S$4.5 million (ref. page 54). With 
CPE earning a surplus of $639,053 (ref. page 68), she asked if the Institute could look into subsidising the CPE 
courses.

 Treasurer informed that the Institute was giving back to members through its CPE Training Assistance Package as 
mentioned by the Chairman earlier. On top of this, some of the CPE courses were already subsidised and charged at 
a low fee of S$30 to S$40. He also reminded that SAA is a commercial arm and there was no guarantee of it making 
money every year. As it is, some of the commercial entities outside were losing money while there were others that 
are closing down.

 Vice-President added that everyone is facing a difficult time now. That was why, ICPAS rolled out the CPE Training 
Assistance Package where members can use half of their subscription fees to offset the cost. Besides, the Institute 
was running several of the courses at breakeven cost. He reminded that while the Institute had made some money, 
it would also need to spend money to fulfill its strategic plans going forward.

4.3.5 Mr Lim Jen Howe congratulated the Institute on a job well done. He suggested the Institute report in the following 
year, how much the strategic plans and its initiatives cost and how much had been spent. It would be useful for 
members to know the strategic plans and its related costs separately. 

 Vice-President acknowledged that was a good suggestion. However, he cautioned that certain costs could be common 
costs. Nevertheless, the Institute would take note and see what it can do. He assured that while the Institute needed 
to spend to move it forward, it would be prudent in its spending.

4.3.6 Mr Goh Chong Yong was concerned if SAA should become a full-fleged university, given that there were already many 
private universities offering accounting qualifications. 

 Vice-President said SAA had a good team managing the academy. As to whether it should become a full-fledged 
university, the Institute certainly had the capabilities. Whether it would model after “London School of Economics” 
and specialise in accountancy for instance, or turn out to be something else, nothing was confirmed as yet as it was 
still in the consultation stage. He welcomed members to write in to ICPAS should they have any suggestions with 
regards to the strategic plan.

4.4 As no further matters were raised, the Annual Report of the Institute for the year 2008/2009 and the Accounts of the 
Institute for the year ended 31 December 2008 have been received by the meeting, upon proposal by Mr Jerry Lee 
and seconded by Mr Andrew Kuan.

5.  ELECTION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

5.1 The Chairman informed the meeting that the following members of the Council had retired in accordance with the 
provisions of Articles 38 to 40 of the Constitution:

 Practising members Non-Practising members
 Don Ho Mun-Tuke Quek Shi Kui
 Kon Yin Tong Tan Boen Eng
 Steven Phan Swee Kim Tom Yee Lat Shing
 Sitoh Yih Pin Yim Kam May
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5.2 As only four nominations each had been received in respect of the Practising members and Non-Practising 
members, the 4 Practising members and 4 Non-Practising members were deemed to be duly elected members 
of the Council for a two-year term as from this Annual General Meeting in accordance with Rule 23 of the ICPAS  
(General Meetings) Rules. They are:

 Practising members Non-Practising members
 Don Ho Mun-Tuke Quek Shi Kui
 Kon Yin Tong Tan Boen Eng
 Steven Phan Swee Kim Tom Yee Lat Shing
 Sitoh Yih Pin Yim Kam May

6.  MOTION

The Council has put forth a motion to amend Article 26 of the ICPAS Constitution.

The Grounds for the motion being:
• Currently the Institute’s Constitution does not provide for the Immediate Past President (IPP) by virtue of being IPP to be 

entitled to a seat on the Council;
• The Institute believes that it would be beneficial for an IPP to remain on the Council for a period of time after he steps down 

as President to ensure continuity of oversight of projects undertaken during the IPP’s tenure as President.

The motion was to resolve that Article 26 of the Constitution be amended to read as follows by adding an Article 26.3:
   
Subject to Article 41, the Council shall consist of:

26.1 8 Practising members of the Institute to be elected by the Practising members of the Institute;
26.2 8 Non-Practising members of the Institute to be elected by the Non-Practising members of the Institute; and
26.3 The Immediate Past President of the Institute who shall hold office as a member of the Council from the time 

he ceased to be President.

Some members expressed the view that there should be a time limit to the tenure of the IPP. The Institute’s legal advisor present 
at the meeting shared that the Law Society has IPP but there was no specific mention of tenure. It was also clarified that the 
term of the IPP automatically ceased when the President steps down and becomes the IPP. The views were also expressed that 
there was a need to define the term of presidency as well. Vice-President indicated that he could understand the concerns and 
clarified that the benchmark was against other leading professional bodies. ICAEW’s current constitution does not have tenure 
for presidency although the term is for one year. However, he noted the feedback given by the members.

After members debated on the pros and cons of the proposed amendment, a ballot was cast, with the counting of votes witnessed 
by the Institute’s auditor and one member, Mr Jerry Lee. The results are:

Total no. of votes cast  116
No. of votes for the motion 67 
No. of votes against the motion  46
No. of votes rejected  3

To amend the Constitution, a vote of 75% is needed. With only 59.2% votes received, the motion is therefore not passed.

7.  TERMINATION OF MEETING

In conclusion, the Chairman cited Rule 6 of the ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules, which provided that no motion shall be 
discussed at any Annual General Meeting of the Institute unless the required notice of 14 days was given. As the Secretariat 
had not received any such notice, and as all items on the agenda had been dealt with, the meeting was formally declared 
closed at 4:30 pm.

Signed as a correct record
Chairman
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Dated this  day of              2010.

I,      of          being a member of the Institute,

do hereby appoint     of            , or failing him

  of  as my proxy to vote for me at the Annual General Meeting of the Institute to 

be held on 17 April 2010 and any adjournment of such meeting.     

Form of Proxy

THE SCHEDULE
            Rule 12

THE INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
OF SINGAPORE (GENERAL MEETINGS) RULES

Signed by

in the presence of    

member of Institute of Certified )

Public Accountants of Singapore, of   )

)

)

)

)

)

(Address) (Signature of member)

 

  
 
   (Signature of Witness)

NOTE:  
   
  

   
  
  

   
   
  

    

A member entitled to vote may appoint as his proxy any other member who is qualified to vote, 
except that no member shall be entitled to vote by proxy in the election of a member or members 
of the Council. [Rule 11, ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules] 

The instrument of proxy shall be in the form set out in the Schedule and shall be signed in the 
presence of another member, other than the proxy holder, who is entitled to vote. [Rule 12, ICPAS 
(General Meetings) Rules] 

The proxy shall not be entitled to vote at a meeting unless the instrument of proxy  has been 
deposited with the Executive Director not less than 48 hours before the date and time fixed for the 
meeting. [Rule 15, ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules]
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Established in 1963, Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) 
is the national accountancy body that 
develops, supports and enhances the 
integrity, status and interests of the 
profession.

The Certified Public Accountant Singapore 
(CPA Singapore) is a professional in 
accountancy, finance and business who 
has the relevant work experience in 
addition to a recognised accountancy 
qualification. CPAs Singapore serve every 
corner of the world in every industry. Many 
of them helm some of the most prominent 
local and international corporations.

 
ICPAS accords the CPA Singapore 
designation. Working closely alongside 
businesses,  ICPAS connects i ts 
membership to an unmatched range 
of information resources, events, 
professional development and networking 
opportunities. Presently, there are more 
than 21,000 members making their  
strides in businesses across all industries 
in Singapore and around the world.
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